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To Our Shareholders, Employees, and Customers:
uby’s has come a long way since 2001. We reported then that
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there would be no quick fixes to our situation, and we committed
ourselves to an emphasis on fundamentals. While our financial
performance for this past year may have fallen short of the

expectations of many shareholders, 2002 has been a year of rebuilding,
reconfiguring, and preparation for the future. We have tightened and
reorganized our operations, instituted higher standards for food and
service quality, expanded training programs, and implemented policies that
demand accountability and recognize accomplishment.
We are now in the implementation phase of the new operational and
marketing strategies that will provide the innovation, quality, and return on
investment that made Luby’s a Texas icon and one of the most successful
companies in the nation. We have identified our opportunities and established goals to guide us toward successful results.

Standing, Robert T. Herres. Seated (from left), Harris J. Pappas and Christopher J. Pappas.

We’re Ready: New concept development and marketing efforts will
provide new opportunities
The most exciting opportunity for Luby’s is in finding specific niches in
our various markets and developing new concepts and marketing opportu-

Bright Beginnings

nities to capture new business. We are now responding to the local competition in each market — doing what we need to do to be successful in that
regard. We are tailoring our food service for our target customers with better pricing and, in some cases, a different product. We have already begun
to take advantage of such opportunities in selected markets. For example:
• All-You-Can-Eat Buffet-Style restaurants in several of our markets are
providing Luby’s customers with a different and popular food delivery
choice. Local competition and consumer demographics were studied to
determine which markets were best suited to try out the All-You-Can-Eat
Buffet option.
In addition, we are taking this concept and adapting it to provide added
value in our traditional Luby’s cafeterias. All-You-Can-Eat Daily
Specials at these stores provide a more competitive offering and are
attracting price-sensitive customers. Response to these new offerings
looks promising.
• Weekend Breakfast Buffets have tapped into a previously unexploited
opportunity for new revenue streams. We will aggressively continue to
roll out these breakfast buffets which have been popular and successful
in each of our test markets.
• Luby’s Steak Buffet in Houston is a new concept with a fun western
décor including a barbecue grill where customers can see their steak,
pork, and sausage entrees come sizzling to their plates. The busy, bright,
new atmosphere is drawing a broadened customer base and offers great
potential. Luby’s Seafood in Huntsville is another new concept that also
presents a casual, contemporary setting featuring table service and
offering beer and wine; we are encouraged by the results we have seen
in this market so far.
The company is finding that many of these new delivery systems and

Continuing Luby’s strong and innovative
thrust into new territory, we’ve developed a
unique new weekend breakfast buffet. In
numerous locations, we’ve tapped into a
new day-part revenue stream previously
reserved for our competition. We will
continue to aggressively roll out this favorite
in select stores. Our buffet-style breakfast
offers a wide variety of homemade recipes,
including Belgian waffles with fresh strawberries and whipped topping, buttermilk
pancakes, made-to-order omelets, assorted
breakfast bakeries, country bacon, sausage
links, and much, much more.

presentations build traffic and enhance sales at different times of the day to
complement the traditional lunchtime cafeteria clientele. Through these
initiatives, Luby’s is now offering an even greater value proposition, and we
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are excited about the new customers we are seeing in our dining rooms.
Special food promotions with attractive pricing and innovative offerings
are helping us reach out to a broader audience.

It’s All About the Food
We’re Set: Starting with food excellence, Luby’s is positioning for success
In order to begin implementing effective programs that draw customers
and generate profitable revenue, we needed preparation time. “Getting set”
meant implementing the operational changes necessary to deliver the kind
of food and service that can compete in today’s markets.
Our highest priority was to ensure Luby’s food today not only lives up
to our loyal customers’ memories and expectations but also attracts new
customers. We have worked hard to make that happen over the past year.
We focused on training our restaurant chefs on the newest cooking techniques. The company has implemented short-order food preparation techniques and increased cooking staffs to shorten the time between cooking
and serving food. We continue to respond to customer demand for new
menu items, new dining concepts, and food marketing programs that
address competitive pressures.
Organizationally, we have expanded leadership opportunities for experienced restaurant managers, while ensuring their experience continues to
be effectively utilized and applied to store level activity. We restructured
At Luby’s it is a tradition to ask our customers what they want and then give it to
them. In response to customer feedback,
we have introduced more vibrant, freshfrom-the-sea fish entrees that are full
flavored; as well as moist and crunchy,
brightly colored vegetables that are nutritious and yummy. Customers also asked
us to continue to offer the recipes that
generations of their families have come to
love. We listened, and have begun to use
more modern culinary practices and flavors
on our traditional recipes. These are the
recipes that have been the heart and soul
of Luby’s kitchens and have created the
“culture” that has made Luby’s successful
over the decades.
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management responsibilities to improve oversight and provide accountability. New quality assurance programs allow us to better measure performance so we can recognize and reward outstanding contributors. Programs
that help us identify those who can help us succeed are important because
good people throughout our organization are critical to our success. Luby’s
must have people who can deliver fine food, excellent customer service, and
innovative management. To meet that demand, the company has established the principle that training is an ongoing process and is applying that
principle by establishing continuing education programs for managers. To
further prepare for the future, Luby’s will continue to focus on management recruiting and development.
Letting people know what we have to offer in terms of value and variety
is also important. New exterior marquees market our food promotions and
encourage guests to try new menu items; large, new in-store menu boards

emphasize entrée value combinations and facilitate guest ordering. These
are just two examples of simple but effective new marketing efforts, many
of which are tailored for local markets. They are helping customers understand the value Luby’s presents and are helping us attract new customers.

Leading the Way

Let’s Go: Luby’s is on the way to a new and bright future
While we are pleased with the sales-building initiatives we are implementing and with the improvements we have seen in food quality and
operations, it is clear that there is still a lot of work to do. We are nevertheless convinced that Luby’s can offer the best values in restaurant service
today — especially for family dining. This segment offers great opportunity, and we are committed to finding new ways to address families with
children. We will continue to look at each community that Luby’s serves,
examine new ideas and opportunities, and seek to establish Luby’s as the
restaurant of choice for both families looking for good value and the broadened customer base that is responding to our new concepts.
This coming year, Luby’s will be focused on building sales. We will be
working to let our customers know exactly what they can expect from
Luby’s — delicious, home-style food, value pricing, and outstanding customer service. These basic fundamentals are critical to the success of our
business. Along with our team of dedicated and hard-working professionals, we will strive over the next year to achieve improved financial performance and restore the Luby’s name to prominence once again. For we believe
Luby’s best days are not in the past, but lie ahead.

Sincerely,

Robert T. Herres

Christopher J. Pappas

Harris J. Pappas

Chairman of the Board

President and
Chief Executive Officer

Chief Operating Officer
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Managers are kept on the cutting edge through
hands-on training, testing, and interactive
participation with senior managers, training
personnel, and our culinary experts.

L.E.A.D. (Luby’s Education and Advanced
Development) is a training and development
program for the company’s restaurant managers. Managers progress through a series
of levels designed to strengthen technical
skills, knowledge, and aptitude. Developmental guidelines provide goals that
managers must attain before moving on to
the next “level” as well as valuable skills they
can use immediately in their daily work. By
identifying varying degrees of competence
and job functions, the program structures the
development of all restaurant management
and provides a quantitative means for evaluation. L.E.A.D. will offer continuing education
courses on a monthly basis and will include
topics related to food, restaurant operations,
operational systems, human resources,
leadership, information systems, accounting,
and risk management.
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Corporate Information
Founded in 1947 in San Antonio, Texas, Luby’s owns
and operates restaurants located primarily in the
southern and southwestern United States. The
company’s restaurants are currently located in ten
states, with the majority in Texas. The company
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has approximately 11,000 employees and is headquartered in San Antonio, Texas.
The company’s product strategy is to provide
its customers with a wide variety of freshly cooked
foods served cafeteria-style at reasonable prices in
an attractive and informal environment. These
products appeal to a broad range of consumers,
including families with children, seniors, shoppers,
travelers, and business people who want quick,
healthy meals. Generally located in close proximity
to retail centers, business developments, and residential areas, the restaurants are open seven days a
week for lunch and dinner in most markets. The
restaurants also offer take-out service.

Company Web Site
www.lubys.com
Notice of Annual Meeting
The 2003 annual meeting of
shareholders will be held Friday,
January 31, 2003, at 9:00 a.m.
local time, at the San Antonio
Marriott Northwest, 3233 Northwest
Loop 410, San Antonio, TX
Registrar and Stock Transfer Agent
American Stock Transfer & Trust
Company
59 Maiden Lane
New York, NY 10007
800-937-5449
www.amstock.com

Annual Report
The 2002 Luby’s, Inc. Annual Report
is available online at www.lubys.com
or additional copies may be obtained
by contacting:
Luby’s, Inc.
Shareholder Relations
2211 Northeast Loop 410
P. O. Box 33069
San Antonio, TX 78265-3069
210-654-9000
NYSE Stock Symbol
LUB

Financial Highlights
2002

2001

2000

(In thousands except per share data)

Sales ......................................................................................................................... $ 399,065
Provision for asset impairments and restaurant closings.....................................

$ 493,384

30,402

14,544

Income (loss) from operations ..............................................................................

(6,490)

(39,307)

17,112

Income (loss) before income taxes ........................................................................

(14,360)

(48,779)

13,421

Net income (loss)....................................................................................................

(9,653)

(31,881)

9,125

Income (loss) per share ..........................................................................................

(0.43)

(1.42)

0.41

EBITDA ...................................................................................................................

16,777

16,103

54,440

EBITDA per share ...................................................................................................

0.75

0.72

2.43

Cash and short-term investments..........................................................................

25,706

24,083

679

Total assets...............................................................................................................

342,479

353,864

370,843

Total debt, net .........................................................................................................

124,331

127,401

116,000

Capital expenditures ............................................................................................... $ 13,097

$ 17,630

$ 53,494

213

231

Number of restaurants ...........................................................................................

4

314

$ 467,161

196
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PART I
Item 1.

Business

Overview
Luby's, Inc. (formerly, Luby's Cafeterias, Inc.) was originally incorporated in Texas in 1959 and was
reincorporated in Delaware on December 31, 1991. The Company's administrative oÇces are at 2211 Northeast Loop 410, P. O. Box 33069, San Antonio, Texas 78265-3069.
Luby's, Inc. was restructured into a holding company on February 1, 1997, at which time all of the
operating assets were transferred to Luby's Restaurants Limited Partnership, a Texas limited partnership
composed of two wholly owned, indirect corporate subsidiaries of the Company. All restaurant operations are
conducted by the partnership. Unless the context indicates otherwise, the word ""Company'' as used herein
includes the partnership and the consolidated corporate subsidiaries of Luby's, Inc.
As of November 14, 2002, the Company operated 193 restaurants under the name ""Luby's.'' These
establishments are located in close proximity to retail centers, business developments, and residential areas
throughout ten states (listed below under Item 2). Of the 193 restaurants, 124 are at locations owned by the
Company and 69 are on leased premises. Additionally, one of the restaurants primarily serves seafood, 26 are
all-you-can-eat concepts, and 166 are traditional cafeterias.
The Company's restaurants constructed prior to 1999 typically contain 9,000 to 10,500 square feet of Öoor
space and can seat 250 to 300 guests simultaneously. In more recent years, the Company built several morecontemporary units. They contain 6,000 to 8,600 square feet of Öoor space and can seat 170 to 214 guests
simultaneously.
Operations
The Company's operations provide customers with a wide variety of tasty food with most served cafeteriastyle at reasonable prices. Daily, each restaurant oÅers 12 to 14 entrees, 12 to 14 vegetable dishes, 12 to
16 salads, and 15 to 18 desserts. Food is prepared in small quantities throughout serving hours and frequent
quality checks are conducted.
The Company's marketing research has shown that its products appeal to a broad range of value-oriented
consumers with particular success among families with children, seniors, shoppers, travelers, and business
people looking for a quick, homestyle meal at a reasonable price. During Ñscal 2002, the Company spent
approximately .2% of sales on traditional marketing venues, including newsprint, radio, point-of-purchase, and
local-store marketing. The Company also invested approximately $600,000 in distinct store marquees at 72 of
its restaurants, which enhance customer awareness of speciÑc store promotions.
Luby's restaurants are generally open for lunch and dinner seven days a week. Breakfast has been tested
successfully in several markets; however, it is too early to predict if it will ultimately be rolled out Companywide or, if so, when that might occur. All of the restaurants sell take-out orders, and many of them have
separate food-to-go entrances. Take-out orders accounted for approximately 12.8% of sales in Ñscal 2002.
Each restaurant is operated as a separate unit under the control of a general manager who has
responsibility for day-to-day operations, including food production and personnel employment and supervision.
The Company's philosophy is to grant broad authority to its restaurant managers and compensate them on the
basis of their performance, believing these are signiÑcant factors in restaurant proÑtability. Of the 193 general
managers employed by the Company, 135 have been employed for more than ten years. Typically, an
individual is employed for a period of four to seven years before he or she is considered qualiÑed to become a
general manager.
The Company operates from a centralized purchasing arrangement to obtain the economies of bulk
purchasing and lower prices for most of its food products. The arrangement involves a competitively selected
prime vendor for each of its three major purchasing regions.
Each restaurant prepares virtually all of the food served, including breads and pastries. Menus are
reviewed periodically by a committee of managers and chefs. The committee introduces newly developed
recipes to ensure oÅerings are varied and that seasonal food preferences are incorporated.
2

Quality control teams also help to maintain uniform standards of food preparation. The teams visit each
restaurant as necessary and work with the staÅ to check adherence to Company recipes, train personnel in new
techniques, and implement systems and procedures used universally throughout the Company.
During the Ñscal year ended August 28, 2002, the Company closed 18 underperforming units and
reopened one unit as a new seafood restaurant. Since August 28, 2002, the Company has closed four
underperforming restaurants and reopened one previously closed cafeteria as a steak buÅet. Additionally, in
Ñscal 2003, the Company plans to close additional units and reopen three restaurants as other concepts. In
addition to changing the concepts in some locations based upon their surrounding demographics, the Company
believes one of its primary opportunities for growth centers around improving same-store sales growth at
existing locations.
As of year-end, the Company had a workforce of approximately 11,000, consisting of 10,200 nonmanagement restaurant workers; 600 restaurant managers, associate managers, and assistant managers; and 200 clerical, administrative, and executive employees. Employee relations are considered to be good. The Company has
never had a strike or work stoppage and is not subject to collective bargaining agreements.
Service Marks
The Company uses several service marks, including ""Luby's,'' and believes that such marks are of
material importance to its business. The Company has federal service mark registrations for several such
marks.
The Company is not the sole user of the name Luby's in the cafeteria business. A cafeteria using the
name Luby's is being operated in Texas by an unaÇliated company. The Company's legal counsel is of the
opinion that the Company has the paramount right to use the name Luby's as a service mark in the United
States and that the other user can be precluded from expanding its use of the name as a service mark.
Competition and Other Factors
The foodservice business is highly competitive, and there are numerous restaurants and other foodservice
operations in each of the markets where the Company operates. The quality of food served, in relation to price
and public reputation, is an important factor in foodservice competition. Neither the Company nor any of its
competitors has a signiÑcant share of the total market in any area in which the Company competes. The
Company believes that its principal competitors include family-style and fast-casual restaurants, buÅets, and
quick-service establishments in the home-meal-replacement category.
The Company's facilities and food products are subject to state and local health and sanitation laws. In
addition, the Company's operations are subject to federal, state, and local regulations with respect to
environmental and safety matters, including regulations concerning air and water pollution and regulations
under the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Federal Occupational Safety and Health Act. Such laws
and regulations, in the Company's opinion, have not materially aÅected its operations, although improved
compliance has resulted in some increased costs.
Item 2.

Properties

As of November 14, 2002, the Company owns the underlying land and buildings in which 124 of its
restaurants are located. In addition, the Company owns six sites being held for possible future restaurant
development, and 11 properties are held for sale.
Of the 193 restaurants currently operated by the Company, 69 are at locations held under leases,
including 37 in regional shopping malls. Most of the leases provide for a combination of Ñxed-dollar and
percentage rentals. Many require the Company to pay additional amounts related to property taxes, hazard
insurance, and maintenance of common areas.
See Note 10 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for information concerning the
Company's lease rental expenses and lease commitments. Of the 69 restaurant leases, the current terms of
31 expire before 2008, 26 from 2008 to 2012, and 12 thereafter. Fifty-nine of the leases can be extended
beyond their current terms at the Company's option.
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Luby's restaurants are well maintained and in good condition. The Company refurbishes and updates
restaurants and equipment as necessary to maintain their appearance and utility. Several of the Company's
restaurant properties contain excess building space, which is rented to tenants unaÇliated with the Company.
The Company's restaurants are located as follows: six in Arizona, Ñve in Arkansas, one in Florida, two in
Louisiana, two in Mississippi, two in Missouri, two in New Mexico, seven in Oklahoma, seven in Tennessee,
and 159 in Texas.
The Company's primary administrative oÇces are located in a building owned by the Company
containing approximately 40,000 square feet of useable oÇce space.
The Company maintains public liability insurance and property damage insurance on its properties in
amounts which management believes to be adequate.
Item 3.

Legal Proceedings

Two former restaurant assistant managers have Ñled suit in federal district court alleging violations of the
Fair Labor Standards Act and the commission of certain fraudulent acts by the Company. The plaintiÅs also
seek authorization to represent a class of all assistant managers employed by the Company throughout the
United States who they claim, on information and belief, are similarly without the requisite job duties and
responsibilities to be considered exempt from the overtime requirements of the Fair Labor Standards Act. The
Company has asserted that no class is appropriate, that plaintiÅs were exempt from the right to overtime
compensation under the Fair Labor Standards Act under the white collar exemptions, and has denied any
misrepresentations. The complaint does not specify the total amount of damages being sought. The court
denied plaintiÅs' request to certify a nationwide class, and instead certiÑed a class consisting of assistant
managers that worked in the Memphis area from August 1999 to July 2002. The plaintiÅs are still seeking to
expand the class beyond Memphis. The Company believes that the allegations are unfounded and intends to
continue to diligently contest the claims of the plaintiÅs.
Item 4.

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matter was submitted during the fourth quarter of the Ñscal year ended August 28, 2002, to a vote of
security holders of the Company.
Item 4A.

Executive OÇcers of the Registrant

Certain information is set forth below concerning the executive oÇcers of the Company, each of whom
has been elected to serve until his successor is duly elected and qualiÑed:
Served as
OÇcer Since

Positions with Company and
Principal Occupation Last Five Years

Christopher J. Pappas

2001

Harris J. Pappas

2001

Ernest Pekmezaris

2001

Peter Tropoli

2001

President and CEO (since March 2001),
CEO of Pappas Restaurants, Inc.
Chief Operating OÇcer (since March 2001),
President of Pappas Restaurants, Inc.
Senior Vice President and CFO (since March
2001), Treasurer and former CFO of Pappas
Restaurants, Inc.
Senior Vice President-Administration (since
March 2001), attorney in private practice.

Name
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Age

55
58
58

30

PART II
Item 5.

Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Stock Prices and Dividends
The Company's common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol LUB. The
following table sets forth, for the last two Ñscal years, the high and low sales prices on the New York Stock
Exchange from the consolidated transaction reporting system and the per share cash dividends declared on the
common stock.
Fiscal Quarter Ended

November 30, 2000
February 28, 2001
May 31, 2001
August 31, 2001
November 21, 2001
February 13, 2002
May 8, 2002
August 28, 2002

High

Low

Quarterly
Cash
Dividend*

$ 5.88
7.99
8.98
10.05
9.49
7.80
7.33
7.05

$4.25
3.50
6.65
8.40
5.90
5.50
6.00
5.00

$.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

*Dividend suspended October 26, 2000.
As of November 14, 2002, there were approximately 3,942 record holders of the Company's common
stock.
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Item 6.

Selected Financial Data
Five-Year Summary of Operations

Sales
Costs and Expenses:
Cost of food
Payroll and related costs
Occupancy and other operating expenses
General and administrative expenses
Provision for asset impairments and restaurant
closings

August 28,
2002

Year Ended
August 31,
August 31,
August 31,
2001
2000
1999
(In thousands except per share data)

August 31,
1998

$399,065

$467,161

$493,384

$501,493

$508,871

103,435
131,919
148,576
21,311

117,774
166,404
166,533
25,355

125,167
155,769
159,793
20,999

122,418
154,817
155,828
22,031

129,126
155,152
154,501
22,061

314

30,402

14,544

Ì

36,852

405,555

506,468

476,272

455,094

497,692

(6,490)

(39,307)

17,112

46,399

11,179

(10,263)
2,393

(11,660)
2,188

(5,908)
2,217

(4,761)
1,846

(5,078)
1,778

(7,870)

(9,472)

(3,691)

(2,915)

(3,300)

(14,360)
(4,707)

(48,779)
(16,898)

13,421
4,296

43,484
14,871

7,879
2,798

$ (9,653)

$(31,881)

$

9,125

$ 28,613

$

5,081

Net income (loss) per common share Ì basic

$

(0.43)

$

(1.42)

$

0.41

$

1.27

$

0.22

Net income (loss) per common share Ì assuming
dilution

$

(0.43)

$

(1.42)

$

0.41

$

1.26

$

0.22

Cash dividend declared per common share

$

0.00

$

0.00

$

0.70

$

0.80

$

0.80

At year-end:
Total assets

$342,479

$353,864

$370,843

$346,025

$339,041

$

5,883

$127,401

$116,000

$ 78,000

$ 73,000

EBITDA

$ 16,777

$ 16,103

$ 54,440

$ 66,423

$ 69,250

EBITDA per share Ì basic

$

$

$

$

$

Income (loss) from operations
Other income (expenses):
Interest expense
Other income, net

Income (loss) before income taxes
Provision (beneÑt) for income taxes
Net income (loss)

Long-term debt (including net convertible
subordinated debt)(a)
(b)

0.75

Number of restaurants

196

0.72
213

2.43
231

2.94
223

2.98
229

(a)

Fiscal 2002 excludes current portion of debt ($118.4 million) as described in Note 6 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

(b)

The Company deÑnes EBITDA as operating income before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization, and
the noncash portion of the President and CEO's and the COO's stock option compensation.

Note: In Ñscal year 2002, the Company moved from 12 calendar months to 13 four-week periods. The Ñrst
period of Ñscal year 2002 began September 1, 2001, and covered 26 days. All subsequent periods covered
28 days. Fiscal years prior to 2002 were 365 days in length. Fiscal year 2002, the Company's conversion year
from months to periods, was 362 days in length. Most Ñscal years subsequent to 2002 will be 364 days in
length.
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Item 7.

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Results of Operations
Fiscal 2002 Compared to Fiscal 2001
Sales decreased $68.1 million, or 14.6%, in Ñscal 2002 compared to Ñscal 2001. Revenues were
$24.2 million lower due to the closure of 37 restaurants since August 31, 2000. Three fewer days in Ñscal 2002
accounted for approximately $3.5 million of the total sales decline. Excluding the eÅect of fewer restaurants
and fewer days this Ñscal year, same-store sales declined $40.4 million, or 9.3%, for the Ñscal year.
Cost of food decreased $14.3 million, or 12.2%, due primarily to fewer restaurants and the decline in
same-store sales. Food cost as a percentage of sales increased from 25.2% to 25.9% in the current Ñscal year in
comparison with the prior Ñscal year. Various ""manager's special'' promotions coupled with new ""all-you-caneat'' oÅerings at selected locations have contributed to higher food costs as a percent of sales.
Payroll and related costs decreased $34.5 million, or 20.7%, due primarily to restaurant closures, lower
workers' compensation expense, and three fewer days in the current Ñscal year. Of the total reduction,
$20.4 million is due to lower wages resulting from numerous store closures and $12.0 million is due to lower
workers' compensation costs. Relative to the latter, in the prior year, there was a large increase for estimated
claims expense under the Company's historical third-party program. The Company initiated a safety training
and accident prevention program in October 2001 that substantially lowered current year costs.
Occupancy and other operating expenses decreased $18.0 million, or 10.8%. Although the dollar decrease
is primarily due to store closures, other factors contributed to the Öuctuation. Utility costs decreased due to
lower energy costs coupled with moderate temperatures and conservation. Depreciation expense decreased due
to less depreciable properties resulting from previous impairments and property sales. Advertising costs
declined due to reduced emphasis on television advertising. Food-to-go packaging costs further declined due to
the intentional redirection at many locations to inside dining coupled with less expensive packaging.
General and administrative expenses decreased $4.0 million, or 15.9%. Several factors contributed to the
decline. OÇcers' compensation decreased principally due to a reduction in relative headcount coupled with
accelerated vesting of noncash compensation in the prior year. Charges related to the proxy and restructuring
advice contributed to the higher professional costs in the prior year. Consulting fees were less principally due
to a preliminary search for new senior management in Ñscal 2001.
The provision for asset impairments and restaurant closings decreased by $30.1 million due to numerous
impairments and provisions for impairment recorded in the prior year. Charges of $314,000 were provided for
in the current year principally to account for labor termination costs and an additional store closing, net of
unrelated lease settlements that were more favorable than anticipated.
Interest expense decreased $1.4 million, or 12.0%, due primarily to lower eÅective interest rates on
outstanding debt, the payoÅ of the loans on surrendered oÇcers' life insurance policies, and payment
reductions in the line of credit. These factors were oÅset by interest on the $10 million in subordinated debt,
amortization of the loss on interest rate Swaps, and the amortization of amendment fees for the credit facility.
The income tax beneÑt decreased by $12.2 million, or 72.1%, primarily due to a signiÑcantly lower
incurred loss in Ñscal 2002 versus Ñscal 2001.
At August 28, 2002, and August 31, 2001, the Company had a reserve for store closings of $3.1 million
and $4.5 million, respectively. Excluding lease settlements, it is anticipated that all material cash outlays
required for the store closings originally planned as of August 31, 2001, will be made prior to August 27, 2003.
See further discussion in Note 7 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
EBITDA
EBITDA, excluding noncash stock compensation, increased by $.7 million for the current Ñscal year in
comparison with the prior Ñscal year.
The operating performance of the Company is evaluated using several measures, one of which is
EBITDA. The Company's amended credit agreement deÑnes EBITDA as operating income before interest,
taxes, depreciation, amortization, and the noncash portion of the CEO's and the COO's stock option
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compensation. While the Company and many in the Ñnancial community consider EBITDA to be an
important measure of operating performance, it should be considered in addition to, but not as a substitute for
or superior to, other measures of Ñnancial performance prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States, such as operating income and net income. In addition, the Company's
deÑnition of EBITDA is not necessarily comparable to similarly titled measures reported by other companies.
Fiscal 2001 Compared to Fiscal 2000
Sales decreased $26.2 million, or 5.3%, primarily due to 19 store closures as well as market conditions in
the Ñscal year. This decline was partially oÅset by a price increase on the Lu Ann platter. Additionally, the
heavily discounted Luby's platter and ""Big2Do'' bundled oÅerings that were launched in the fourth quarter of
2000 were discontinued in the third quarter of 2001. Excluding leap day in Ñscal 2000, same-store sales
decreased $11.9 million in Ñscal 2001, or 2.6%, compared to Ñscal 2000.
Cost of food decreased $7.4 million, or 5.9%, due to various factors, including store closures and the
discontinuance of more costly product purchases.
Although sales decreased, payroll and related costs increased by $10.6 million, or 6.8%, in comparison to
the prior year. A signiÑcant portion of this, $9.2 million, was due to higher claims accruals. The Company
incurred higher than average and more frequent workers' compensation claims than were experienced in prior
years. (To help prevent injuries and better control costs, the Company launched a new in-house safety and
claims program the following Ñscal year.)
Occupancy and other operating expenses increased $6.7 million, or 4.2%. This increase was due primarily
to higher utility costs resulting from increased commodity rates, higher property taxes related to new stores
and remodels, and higher repair expenses incurred as part of an initiative by new management to bring all
stores up to a higher standard of maintenance and appearance. These increases were partially oÅset by lower
advertising expense due to a new strategic focus. Lower preopening expenses due to opening fewer restaurants
in the current Ñscal year also contributed to the oÅset.
General and administrative expenses increased by $4.4 million, or 20.7%, in comparison to the prior year.
The increase was due primarily to noncash compensation of $1.9 million related to stock options granted to the
Company's CEO and the COO. Other costs that contributed to the increase included legal and consulting fees
primarily related to restructuring advice and bank negotiations, the proxy, and the transaction to hire the CEO
and the COO.
As a result of its continuing eÅorts to redeploy both capital and human resources to improve Ñnancial
performance and strengthen the organization, the Company recorded a pretax charge of $30.4 million during
the year for store closings, associated costs, and asset impairment charges. The principal components of the
2001 charge were as follows:
‚ $11.6 million for the closing of 15 underperforming restaurants, two of which the Company continues
to operate. This charge included the cost to write down the properties and equipment to net realizable
value and estimated costs for the settlement of lease obligations, legal and professional fees, and other
exit costs. Employee severance costs were not accrued.
‚ $17.0 million for asset impairment of 13 restaurants that the Company planned to keep open. Due to
other subsequent events, the Company later closed three of these units. In accordance with Statement
of Financial Standards (SFAS) No. 121, the properties were written down to the estimated future
discounted cash Öows or fully written oÅ in the case of negative future cash Öows.
‚ $.8 million primarily for the impairment of one property operated under a joint venture with
Waterstreet, Inc. The joint venture, L&W Seafood, Inc., was terminated in 1999. This property was
written down to its estimated net realizable value and was sold in Ñscal year 2001.
‚ $1.0 million associated with the write-oÅ of assets for two locations that were remodeled and reopened
before the end of Ñscal year 2002. Property that cannot be salvaged, transferred, or eÅectively reused
has been written oÅ.
See further discussion in Note 7 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Interest expense of $11.7 million for Ñscal 2001 was incurred in conjunction with borrowings under the
credit facility and is net of $336,000 capitalized on qualifying properties. The increase from Ñscal 2000 of
$5.8 million, or 97.4%, was due primarily to higher average borrowings under the credit-facility agreement and
less capitalized interest in the current year due to decreased construction.
The provision for income taxes decreased $21.2 million, or 493.3%, due primarily to lower income before
income taxes.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash and Working Capital
Cash decreased by $2.5 million from the end of the preceding Ñscal year to August 28, 2002, primarily
due to an increase in short-term investments.
The $7.2 million total income tax receivable balance as of August 28, 2002, relates to current year tax
beneÑts that are recoverable in the form of refunds in Ñscal 2003. These refunds accrued from recently
enacted changes in tax legislation that extended carrybacks of net operating losses.
Excluding the reclassiÑcation of the credit facility balance as explained in the Debt section below, the
Company had a working capital deÑcit of $1.1 million at August 28, 2002, in comparison to a working capital
deÑcit of $2.2 million at August 31, 2001. The decline in the deÑcit was primarily attributable to lower
accruals for claims and insurance under the Company's new safety training and accident prevention programs
oÅset by an increase in payables associated with the Company's new accounting close system. Under this
system, the Company closes each period on Wednesdays. Fiscal 2001 ended on a Friday, while Company
disbursement runs were consistently on Fridays for both Ñscal years.
As of August 28, 2002, the Company owned 15 properties held for sale, including six undeveloped land
sites. The Company also had six properties held for future use.
Capital expenditures for the Ñscal year ended August 28, 2002, were $13.1 million. The Company intends
to fund all capital expenditures for Ñscal 2003 from cash Öows from operations and expects them to be no
more than $15 million for that Ñscal year. Management continues to focus on improving the appearance,
functionality, and sales at existing restaurants. These eÅorts also include, where feasible, remodeling certain
locations to other dining concepts. In the second quarter of Ñscal 2002, one existing property was remodeled to
create the Company's Ñrst new concept, Luby's Seafood, in Huntsville, Texas. After year-end, the Company
remodeled and reopened another previously closed location as its Ñrst Steak BuÅet. Potential dining themes
for the three planned remodels in Ñscal 2003 are still under consideration.
Debt
As of September 1, 2001, the Company had a balance of $122 million outstanding under its credit
facility. In Ñscal year 2002, Ñve principal payments totaling $3.6 million reduced the loan balance to
$118.4 million as of August 28, 2002. There is no provision for additional borrowing under the existing
agreement.
Under the agreement terms that were in place during Ñscal 2002 and through the Ñrst quarter of Ñscal
2003, the Company was required to meet certain indicated EBITDA levels. EBITDA is deÑned in the
agreement as earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization, and noncash executive compensation.
The annual EBITDA requirement was met for Ñscal year 2002. However, the Company fell short of its fourthquarter EBITDA requirement. After the end of the 2002 Ñscal year, management obtained a waiver for the
fourth-quarter requirement and an amendment to the debt agreement.
The amendment extended the debt's maturity to October 31, 2004, and increased the applicable interest
rate from prime plus 1.5% to prime plus 2.5%. Additionally, the Ñnancial covenant was changed from quarterly
and annual EBITDA measurements to one that assesses liquidity and future debt service. Management
believes the new covenant is achievable and considers it to be more appropriate for the collateralized credit
facility.
Meanwhile, the Company has executed a commitment letter with another Ñnancial entity for an
$80 million loan. Its purpose is to replace that amount of debt in the existing credit facility. Thus, the
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amendment discussed above requires that the entire proceeds from this other Ñnancial entity be used to pay
down the credit facility. In the event the Company is unable to make the $80 million payment as currently
planned, the amended loan would be in default. The existing lenders would then have the right to exercise any
and all remedies, including the right to demand immediate repayment of the entire outstanding balance or the
right to pursue foreclosure on the assets pledged as collateral. As of August 28, 2002, $246.4 million of the
Company's total book value, or 71.9% of its total assets, including the Company's owned real estate,
improvements, equipment, and Ñxtures, was pledged as collateral under the credit facility. The nonbinding
commitment letter with the new lender is subject to conditions the Company must satisfy before the actual
Ñnancing can occur. Management is currently working toward this goal and has high conÑdence that the
transaction will be completed and the Ñnancing closed by January 31, 2003.
The Company also could pursue other options if its current reÑnancing plans cannot be Ñnalized. Those
options include Ñnancing through high-yield debt at higher than commercial rates or conducting additional
equity security sales through public or private oÅerings. Dilution to existing shareholders would result in the
case of equity security sales.
Assuming the $80 million requirement is met, the amended facility also includes two principal payments.
The Ñrst is a target of $15 million that is also to be paid by January 31, 2003, from either operating cash Öow
or proceeds from the sale of property. Failure to pay the entire $15 million would result in a 1% increase in the
applicable interest rate from prime plus 2.5% to prime plus 3.5%. The second payment, from operating cash
Öow or property sales, is an additional $10 million by September 1, 2003. Again, payment of any amount less
than $10 million would result in another 1% increase in the applicable interest rate.
While negotiations and plan execution are under way, the Company continues to take steps to improve its
cash position, operating results and cash Öows, including the launch of new restaurant oÅerings and costsaving initiatives in the areas of risk management, labor optimization, and purchasing.
Variable-Rate Debt
As of the year-end, the Company currently had a total of $128.4 million in variable-rate debt:
$118.4 million under its credit facility at prime plus 1.5% and $10 million in subordinated convertible notes
loaned to the Company by its CEO and COO at LIBOR (London InterBank OÅered Rate) plus 2%. (See
Note 6 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.)
In prior Ñscal years, the Company had Interest Rate Protection Agreements (Swaps) that eÅectively
Ñxed the interest rate on a portion of its Öoating-rate debt under its line of credit. The Company terminated its
Swaps eÅective July 2, 2001, due to declining interest rates. (See Note 12 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.)
Commitments and Contingencies
In connection with the Luby's Incentive Stock Plan as approved by the shareholders of the Company at
the January 8, 1999, annual meeting of shareholders, the Company guaranteed loans in Ñscal 1999 of
approximately $1.9 million to enable oÇcers to purchase stock in the Company. As of August 28, 2002, the
notes, which each oÇcer obtained from JPMorgan Chase Bank and mature in Ñscal 2004, have a total
outstanding balance of approximately $1.6 million. The purchased Company stock has been and can be used
by the borrowers to satisfy a portion of their obligation. The Company does not anticipate default on the loans
by any of the borrowers; however, in the event of default, the Company is obligated to purchase the speciÑc
borrower's loan from JPMorgan Chase Bank and would therefore become the holder of the note. If the
Company becomes the holder of any defaulted notes, it intends to pursue collection using all available
remedies. (See Note 8 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.)
AÇliate Services
The Company entered into an AÇliate Services Agreement eÅective August 31, 2001, with two
companies, Pappas Partners, L.P. and Pappas Restaurants, Inc., which are restaurant entities owned by
Christopher J. Pappas and Harris J. Pappas. That agreement, as amended on July 23, 2002, limited the scope
of expenditures therein to professional and consulting services. The Company completed this amendment due
to a signiÑcant decline in the use of professional and consulting services from Pappas entities. In hiring its own
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employees to internally provide these services, the Company's relative costs decreased from $51,000 in Ñscal
2001 to $8,000 in Ñscal 2002.
Additionally, on July 23, 2002, the Company entered into a Master Sales Agreement with the same
Pappas entities. Through this agreement, the Company contractually separated the design and fabrication of
equipment and furnishings from the AÇliate Services Agreement. The Master Sales Agreement covers the
costs incurred for modiÑcations to existing equipment, as well as custom fabrication, including stainless steel
stoves, shelving, rolling carts, and chef tables. These items are custom-designed and built to Ñt the designated
kitchens and are also engineered to give a longer service life than comparably manufactured equipment.
The pricing of equipment, repair, and maintenance is set and evaluated periodically and is considered by
management to be primarily at or below market for comparable goods and services. The Finance and Audit
Committee of the Company's Board of Directors also uses independent valuation consultants to assist in
periodically monitoring pricing of the transactions associated with the Master Sales Agreement and the
AÇliate Services Agreement. The Company's external auditors performed agreed upon procedures related to
the aÇliate services. The scope and suÇciency of such procedures are determined by management and the
Board of Directors, and results are submitted to the Board for its use in evaluating the fairness of the
transactions.
As part of the aÇliation with the Pappas entities, the Company leases a facility, the Houston Service
Center, in which Luby's has installed a centralized restaurant service center to support Ñeld operations. The
building at this location has 21,000 square feet of warehouse space and 5,664 square feet of oÇce space. It is
leased from the Pappas entities by the Company at a monthly rate of $.24 per square foot. From this center,
Luby's repair and service teams are dispatched to the Company's restaurants when facility or equipment
maintenance and servicing are needed. The facility is also used for repair and storage of new and used
equipment.
The following compares Ñscal and inception-to-date charges incurred under the Master Sales Agreement
and the AÇliate Services Agreement to total general and administrative expenses, capital expenditures, and
occupancy and other operating expenses:
Fiscal
Year 2002

AÇliate Services Incurred Costs:
General and administrative expenses Ì
professional services
Capital expenditures Ì custom-fabricated and
refurbished equipment
Occupancy and other operating expenses,
including Houston Service Center lease
Less pass-through amounts to third parties
Total

$

$

Applicable Total Company Costs:
General and administrative expenses
Capital expenditures
Occupancy and other operating expenses
Total
AÇliate Services Incurred Costs as a percentage of
Applicable Total Company Costs
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Total
For All
Periods

Fiscal
Year 2001
(In thousands)

$

51

$

% of
Total

59

9.0%

506

200

706

107.1%

130
(154)

20
(102)

150
(256)

22.8%
(38.9)%

659

100.0%

490

$

169

$

$ 21,311
13,097
148,576

$ 25,355
17,630
166,533

$ 46,666
30,727
315,109

11.9%
7.8%
80.3%

$182,984

$209,518

$392,502

100.0%

0.27%

0.08%

0.17%

Trends and Uncertainties
Same-Store Sales
The restaurant business is highly competitive with respect to food quality, concept, location, price, and
service. The Company has experienced declining same-store sales since 1996 as a result of previous execution
strategies, as well as increased industry-wide competition. The Company competes with a large number of
other restaurants, many of which have greater Ñnancial resources. Management believes the Company's
success will depend largely on its ability to execute its new strategies, optimize its Ñnancial resources, and
respond to changes in consumer preferences, as well as to general economic conditions.
The following shows the comparative change in same-store sales:
Q4

(13.0)%

Fiscal Year 2002
Q3
Q2

(13.2)%

(8.6)%

Q1

Q4

(2.7)%

1.9%

Fiscal Year 2001
Q3
Q2

(0.4)%

(5.3)%

Q1

(6.8)%

The Company enacted price increases in the third and fourth quarters of Ñscal 2001. The Ñrst quarter of
Ñscal 2002 includes September 11, 2001. In the third and fourth quarters of Ñscal 2002, the Company was able
to maintain its comparative cash Öow level with declining sales by lowering operating costs.
The Company may Ñnd additional opportunities to lower costs; however, continued declines in net samestore sales could reduce operating cash Öow. If severe declines in cash Öow were to develop without oÅsetting
reductions in uses of cash, such as capital expenditures, the Company's ability to maintain compliance with
the Ñnancial covenants of the amended credit facility may be impaired. In such an event, the lender would
have the right to terminate the credit facility, accelerate the maturity of any outstanding obligation under that
facility, and pursue foreclosure on assets pledged as collateral.
New Programs
In addition to those alluded to earlier, the Company has initiated a number of programs since March
2001. These programs, as listed below, are intended to address the decline in total and same-store sales, while
prudently managing costs and increasing overall proÑtability:
‚ Food excellence;
‚ Service excellence;
‚ Emphasis on value, including all-you-can-eat promotions;
‚ Increased emphasis on employee training and development;
‚ Targeted marketing, especially directed at families;
‚ Closure of certain underperforming restaurants;
‚ New concept conversions; and
‚ Continued emphasis on in-house safety training, accident prevention, and claims management.
Impairment
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) 121 requires the Company to review long-lived
assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an
asset may not be recoverable. The Company considers a history of operating losses or negative cash Öows and
unfavorable changes in market conditions to be its main indicators of potential impairment. Assets are
generally evaluated for impairment at the restaurant level. If a restaurant does not meet its Ñnancial
investment objectives or continues to incur negative cash Öows or operating losses, an impairment charge may
be recognized in future periods.
Insurance and Claims
Workers' compensation and employee injury claims expense decreased substantially in comparison with
the prior Ñscal year due to improved cost control, safety training and accident prevention eÅorts, well as the
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management of new claims in-house. Actual claims settlements and expenses may diÅer from estimated
interim loss provisions. The Company cannot make any assurances as to the ultimate level of claims under the
in-house safety program or whether declines in incidence of claims as well as claims costs experienced in Ñscal
2002 will continue in future periods.
The Company may be the subject of claims or litigation from guests and employees alleging injuries as a
result of its operations. In addition, unfavorable publicity from such allegations could have an adverse impact
on Ñnancial results, regardless of their validity or ultimate outcome.
Minimum Wage and Labor Costs
From time to time, the U.S. Congress considers an increase in the federal minimum wage. The restaurant
industry is intensely competitive, and in such case, the Company may not be able to transfer all of the resulting
increases in operating costs to its customers in the form of price increases. In addition, since the Company's
business is labor-intensive, shortages in the labor pool or other inÖationary pressure could increase labor costs.
Reserve for Restaurant Closings
The reserve for restaurant closings declined from $4.5 million at August 31, 2001, to $3.1 million at
August 28, 2002, primarily due to the payment of lease settlement costs of approximately $856,000 and further
reductions associated with more favorable lease settlements than originally anticipated. (See Note 7 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.)
Critical Accounting Policies
The Company has identiÑed the following policies as critical to its business and the understanding of its
results of operations. The Company believes it is improbable that materially diÅerent amounts would be
reported relating to the accounting policies described below if other acceptable approaches were adopted.
However, the application of these accounting policies, as described below, involve the exercise of judgment
and use of assumptions as to future uncertainties; therefore, actual results could diÅer from estimates
generated from their use.
Income Taxes
The Company records the estimated future tax eÅects of temporary diÅerences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and amounts reported in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, as well as
operating loss and tax credit carrybacks and carryforwards. The Company periodically reviews the recoverability of tax assets recorded on the balance sheet and provides valuation allowances as management deems
necessary. Management makes judgments as to the interpretation of the tax laws that might be challenged
upon an audit and cause changes to previous estimates of tax liability. In addition, the Company operates
within multiple taxing jurisdictions and is subject to audit in these jurisdictions. In management's opinion,
adequate provisions for income taxes have been made for all years.
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
The Company periodically evaluates long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. In performing impairment reviews of
such restaurants, the Company estimates future cash Öows expected to result from the use of the asset and the
possible residual value associated with their eventual disposition. The estimates of future cash Öows, based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections, require management's subjective judgments. The
time periods for estimating future cash Öows is often lengthy, which increases the sensitivity to assumptions
made. Depending on the assumptions and estimates used, the estimated future cash Öows projected in the
evaluation of long-lived assets can vary within a wide range of outcomes. The Company considers the
likelihood of possible outcomes in determining the best estimate of future cash Öows.
Insurance and Claims
The Company periodically reviews its workers' compensation and general liability reserves to ensure
reasonableness. In Ñscal 2001, the Company initiated an in-house safety and claims program focused on safety
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training and rigorous scrutiny of new claims, which has reduced costs signiÑcantly. Consistent with the prior
year, the Company's liability is based upon estimates obtained from both an actuarial Ñrm and internal risk
management staÅ. Assumptions and judgments are used in evaluating these costs. The possibility exists that
future claims-related liabilities could increase due to unforeseen circumstances.
New Accounting Pronouncements
In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS 144, ""Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.'' This Standard requires the recognition and measurement
of the impairment of long-lived assets to be held and used and the measurement of long-lived assets to be
disposed of by sale. The Company plans to adopt the pronouncement in Ñscal 2003. The Company does not
expect a material impact on its results of operations or Ñnancial condition as a result of the adoption of this
Standard.
The Company has accounted for the cessation of operations under the provisions of Emerging Issues Task
Force No. 94-3, ""Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination BeneÑts and Other Costs to Exit
an Activity.'' In June 2002, FASB issued SFAS 146, ""Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities.'' The Company will also adopt the accounting requirement of SFAS 146 in Ñscal 2003 and does not
anticipate the eÅects to the Ñnancial statements to be material.
InÖation
The Company's policy is to maintain stable menu prices without regard to seasonal variations in food
costs. General increases in costs of food, wages, supplies, and services make it necessary for the Company to
increase its menu prices from time to time. To the extent prevailing market conditions allow, the Company
intends to adjust menu prices to maintain proÑt margins.
Forward-Looking Statements
The Company wishes to caution readers that various factors could cause its actual Ñnancial and
operational results to diÅer materially from those indicated by forward-looking statements made from time to
time in news releases, reports, proxy statements, registration statements, and other written communications
(including the preceding sections of this Management's Discussion and Analysis), as well as oral statements
made from time to time by representatives of the Company. Except for historical information, matters
discussed in such oral and written communications are forward-looking statements that involve risks and
uncertainties, including but not limited to general business conditions, the impact of competition, the success
of operating initiatives, changes in the cost and supply of food and labor, the seasonality of the Company's
business, taxes, inÖation, governmental regulations, and the availability of credit, as well as other risks and
uncertainties disclosed in periodic reports on Form 10-K and Form 10-Q.
Item 7A.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

At year-end, the Company had $118.4 million outstanding under its credit facility at prime plus 1.5%.
Additionally, the Company had $10 million in notes which bear interest at LIBOR plus 2%. The total amount
of debt subject to interest rate Öuctuations was $128.4 million. Assuming a consistent level of debt, a 1%
change in interest rate eÅective from the beginning of the year would result in an increase or decrease in
annual interest expense of $1.3 million.
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Item 8.

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
LUBY'S, INC.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended August 28, 2002, and August 31, 2001 and 2000
with Report of Independent Auditors

Report of Independent Auditors
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Luby's, Inc. and Subsidiaries
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Luby's, Inc. and Subsidiaries at
August 28, 2002, and August 31, 2001, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders'
equity, and cash Öows for each of the three years in the period ended August 28, 2002. These Ñnancial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these consolidated Ñnancial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Ñnancial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the Ñnancial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and signiÑcant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
Ñnancial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated Ñnancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated Ñnancial position of Luby's, Inc. and Subsidiaries at August 28, 2002, and
August 31, 2001, and the results of their operations and their cash Öows for each of the three years in the
period ended August 28, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States.
The accompanying consolidated Ñnancial statements have been prepared assuming that Luby's, Inc. and
Subsidiaries will continue as a going concern. As more fully described in Note 6, there are no assurances that
the Company will be able to obtain Ñnancing necessary to satisfy payments required by the Company's
amended bank facility. This condition raises substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. Management's plans in regard to this matter are also described in Note 6. The consolidated
Ñnancial statements do not include any adjustments to reÖect the possible future eÅects on the recoverability
and classiÑcation of assets or the amounts and classiÑcation of liabilities that may result from the outcome of
this uncertainty.

/s/

ERNST & YOUNG LLP

San Antonio, Texas
October 15, 2002
except for Note 6 as to which
the date is November 25, 2002
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LUBY'S, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
August 28,
August 31,
2002
2001
(In thousands)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash
Short-term investments (see Note 2)
Trade accounts and other receivables
Food and supply inventories
Prepaid expenses
Income tax receivable
Deferred income taxes (see Note 3)

$

1,584
24,122
185
2,197
1,667
7,245
2,726

Total current assets
Property held for sale
Investments and other assets
Property, plant, and equipment Ì at cost, net (see Note 4)

$

4,099
19,984
358
2,701
2,765
6,608
3,192

39,726
8,144
4,642
289,967

39,707
3,048
5,929
305,180

Total assets

$ 342,479

$ 353,864

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (see Note 5)
Current portion of debt (see Note 6)

$

$

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt (see Note 6)
Convertible subordinated notes, net Ì related party (see Note 6)
Accrued claims and insurance
Deferred income taxes and other credits (see Note 3)
Reserve for restaurant closings (see Note 7)
Commitments and contingencies (see Note 8)
Total liabilities
Shareholders' equity
Common stock, $.32 par value; authorized 100,000,000 shares, issued
27,403,067 shares in 2002 and 2001
Paid-in capital
Deferred compensation
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (see Note 9)
Less cost of treasury stock, 4,970,024 and 4,980,124 shares in 2002 and 2001,
respectively
Total shareholders' equity
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

See accompanying notes.
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19,077
21,735
118,448

13,696
28,193
Ì

159,260
Ì
5,883
5,142
5,460
3,114
Ì

41,889
122,000
5,401
6,392
2,673
4,506
Ì

178,859

182,861

8,769
37,335
(1,989)
225,062
Ì

8,769
37,181
(3,299)
234,715
(592)

(105,557)

(105,771)

163,620

171,003

$ 342,479

$ 353,864

LUBY'S, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Year Ended
August 28,
August 31,
August 31,
2002
2001
2000
(In thousands except per share data)

Sales
Costs and expenses:
Cost of food
Payroll and related costs
Occupancy and other operating expenses
General and administrative expenses
Provision for asset impairments and restaurant closings (see Note 7)

$399,065

$467,161

$493,384

103,435
131,919
148,576
21,311
314

117,774
166,404
166,533
25,355
30,402

125,167
155,769
159,793
20,999
14,544

405,555

506,468

476,272

(6,490)
(10,263)
2,393

(39,307)
(11,660)
2,188

17,112
(5,908)
2,217

(14,360)

(48,779)

13,421

(7,841)
3,134

(6,276)
(10,622)

4,528
(232)

(4,707)

(16,898)

4,296

$ (9,653)

$(31,881)

$

9,125

$

$

$

.41

Income (loss) from operations
Interest expense
Other income, net
Income (loss) before income taxes
Provision (beneÑt) for income taxes:
Current
Deferred
Net income (loss)
Net income (loss) per share Ì basic and assuming dilution (see
Note 15)

See accompanying notes.
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(0.43)

(1.42)

LUBY'S, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
August 28,
2002

Cash Öows from operating activities:
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of deferred loss on interest rate swaps
Amortization of discount on convertible subordinated notes
Provision for asset impairments and restaurant closings
Gain on disposal of property held for sale
Loss on disposal of property, plant, and equipment
Settlements associated with restaurant closings
Noncash directors' fees
Noncash compensation expense

$ (9,653)

$(31,881)

21,642
910
482
314
(1,330)
270
Ì
313
1,310

23,065
183
81
30,402
(1,741)
547
Ì
112
1,942

22,784
Ì
Ì
14,544
(397)
11
(125)
Ì
Ì

14,258

22,710

45,942

Cash provided by operating activities before changes in operating assets
and liabilities
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in trade accounts and other receivables
(Increase) decrease in food and supply inventories
(Increase) decrease in income tax receivable
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
(Increase) decrease in other assets
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued insurance, accrued expenses, and other
liabilities
Increase (decrease) in income taxes payable
Increase (decrease) in deferred income taxes and other credits
Increase (decrease) in reserve for restaurant closings
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash Öows from investing activities:
(Increase) decrease in short-term investments
Proceeds from disposal of property held for sale
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant, and equipment
Purchases of land held for future use
Purchases of property, plant, and equipment
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Cash Öows from Ñnancing activities:
Proceeds from convertible subordinated notes
Issuance (repayment) of long-term borrowings
Cash paid upon termination of interest rate swaps
Proceeds from (payments on) borrowing against cash surrender value of
oÇcers' life insurance
Proceeds received on the exercise of employee stock options
Dividends paid
Net increase (decrease) in cash
Cash at beginning of year
$

See accompanying notes.
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$

9,125

173
504
(637)
1,098
251
5,381

45
1,152
(2,859)
1,716
(117)
(6,147)

181
(167)
Ì
71
(232)
(93)

(7,708)
Ì
2,939
(1,651)

10,545
Ì
(8,824)
(1,301)

(1,114)
(4,131)
(364)
(4,827)

14,608

16,920

35,266

(4,138)
3,609
Ì
Ì
(13,097)

(19,984)
7,825
Ì
Ì
(17,630)

Ì
1,861
74
(3,378)
(53,494)

(13,626)

(29,789)

(54,937)

Ì
(3,552)
Ì

10,000
6,000
(1,092)

Ì
38,000
Ì

3,623
Ì
(2,242)

Ì
Ì
(17,936)

(3,497)

16,289

20,064

(2,515)
4,099

3,420
679

393
286

Ì
55
Ì

Net cash provided by (used in) Ñnancing activities

Cash at end of year

Year Ended
August 31,
August 31,
2001
2000
(In thousands)

1,584

$

4,099

$

679
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See accompanying notes.

Balance at August 28, 2002

Balance at August 31, 2001
Net income (loss) for the year
ReclassiÑcation adjustment for loss recognized on termination of
interest rate swaps, net of taxes of $318
Noncash stock compensation expense
Common stock issued under beneÑt plans, net of shares tendered in
partial payment and including tax beneÑts

Balance at August 31, 2000
Net income (loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes:
Cumulative eÅect of a change in accounting for derivative Ñnancial
instruments upon adoption of SFAS 133, net of taxes of $61
Net derivative loss, net of taxes of $514
ReclassiÑcation adjustment for loss included in net income (loss),
net of taxes of $71
ReclassiÑcation adjustment for loss recognized on termination of
interest rate swaps, net of taxes of $64
Common stock issued under beneÑt plans, net of shares tendered in
partial payment and including tax beneÑts
Deferred Compensation/Options
Noncash stock compensation expense
Intrinsic value of beneÑcial conversion feature on convertible
subordinated notes

Balance at August 31, 1999
Net income (loss) for the year
Common stock issued under beneÑt plans, net of shares tendered in
partial payment and including tax beneÑts
Cash dividends, $.70 per share

27,403

$8,769

Ì

Ì

Ì

Ì

Ì
Ì
Ì

Ì
Ì
Ì

Ì
Ì

Ì

Ì

Ì
Ì

Ì

Ì

8,769
Ì

Ì
Ì

Ì
Ì

27,403
Ì

8,769
Ì

Ì
Ì

Ì
Ì
27,403
Ì

$8,769
Ì

27,403
Ì

(4,970)

10

Ì
Ì

(4,980)
Ì

Ì

3
Ì
Ì

Ì

Ì

Ì
Ì

(4,983)
Ì

Ì
Ì

(4,983)
Ì

$(105,557)

214

Ì
Ì

(105,771)
Ì

Ì

55
Ì
Ì

Ì

Ì

Ì
Ì

(105,826)
Ì

Ì
Ì

$(105,826)
Ì

Common Stock
Issued
Treasury
Shares
Amount
Shares
Amount

$37,335

154

Ì
Ì

37,181
Ì

4,680

58
5,241
Ì

Ì

Ì

Ì
Ì

27,202
Ì

106
Ì

$27,096
Ì

Paid-In
Capital

Ì

Ì

Ì
Ì

Ì
Ì

Ì
Ì

Ì
Ì

$(1,989)

Ì

Ì
1,310

(3,299)
Ì

Ì

Ì
(5,241)
1,942

$

Deferred
Compensation

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

LUBY'S, INC.

$225,062

Ì

Ì
Ì

234,715
(9,653)

Ì

Ì
Ì
Ì

Ì

Ì

Ì
Ì

266,596
(31,881)

Ì
(15,694)

$273,165
9,125

Retained
Earnings

Ì
Ì

Ì
Ì

Ì
Ì

$

Ì

Ì

592
Ì

(592)
Ì

Ì

Ì
Ì
Ì

119

133

114
(958)

$

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income
(Loss)

$163,620

368

592
1,310

171,003
(9,653)

4,680

113
Ì
1,942

119

133

114
(958)

196,741
(31,881)

106
(15,694)

$203,204
9,125

Total
Shareholders'
Equity

LUBY'S, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Years 2002, 2001, and 2000
Note 1.

Nature of Operations and SigniÑcant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations
Luby's, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the Company), based in San Antonio, Texas, own and operate restaurants
in the southern and southwestern United States. As of August 28, 2002, the Company operated a total of
196 units. The Company locates its restaurants convenient to shopping and business developments as well as
to residential areas. Accordingly, the restaurants appeal primarily to shoppers, travelers, store and oÇce
personnel at lunch, and to families at dinner.
Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated Ñnancial statements include the accounts of Luby's, Inc. and its wholly
owned and majority-owned subsidiaries. All signiÑcant intercompany accounts and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.
Inventories
The food and supply inventories are stated at the lower of cost (Ñrst-in, Ñrst-out) or market.
Property Held for Sale
Property held for sale is stated at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable value.
Depreciation and Amortization
The Company depreciates the cost of plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using both
straight-line and accelerated methods. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the related lease lives,
which are in some cases shorter than the estimated useful lives of the improvements.
Long-Lived Assets
Impairment losses are recorded on long-lived assets used in operations when indicators of impairment are
present and the undiscounted cash Öows estimated to be generated by those assets are less than the carrying
amount. The Company evaluates impairments on a restaurant-by-restaurant basis and uses three or more
years of negative cash Öows and other market conditions as indicators of impairment. Impairment losses are
also recorded for long-lived assets that are expected to be disposed of.
Preopening Expenses
New store preopening costs are expensed as incurred.
Fiscal Year
In Ñscal year 2002, the Company changed its reporting-period measurement to 13 four-week periods from
12 calendar months. The Ñrst period of Ñscal year 2002 began September 1, 2001, and covered 26 days, and all
subsequent periods covered 28 days. Fiscal year 2002 ended on August 28, 2002, and contained 362 days,
compared to 365 days in Ñscal 2001.
Advertising Expenses
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense as a percentage of sales approximated
0.2%, 1.6%, and 2.1% for Ñscal years 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively.
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LUBY'S, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Income Taxes
Deferred income taxes are computed using the liability method. Under this method, deferred tax assets
and liabilities are determined based on diÅerences between Ñnancial reporting and tax bases of assets and
liabilities (temporary diÅerences) and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in eÅect
when the diÅerences are expected to reverse.
Financial Instruments
The estimated fair value of Ñnancial instruments held by the Company approximates the carrying value.
Stock-Based Compensation
The Company accounts for its employee stock compensation plans using the intrinsic value method of
accounting set forth in Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, ""Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,'' and the related interpretations. Accordingly, compensation cost for stock options is measured as
the excess, if any, of the quoted market price of the Company's stock at the date of grant over the amount an
employee must pay to acquire the stock.
Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income (loss) includes adjustments for certain revenues, expenses, gains, and losses that
are excluded from net income in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States, such as adjustments to the interest rate swaps.
Earnings Per Share
The Company presents basic income (loss) per common share and diluted loss per common share in
accordance with SFAS 128, ""Earnings Per Share.'' Basic income (loss) per share is computed by dividing net
income (loss) by the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during each period presented. In Ñscal
years 2002 and 2001, basic and diluted loss per share were the same due to the antidilutive eÅect of options in
loss periods. In Ñscal year 2000, basic and diluted earnings per share were equal due to the minimal dilutive
eÅect of stock options that year.
Derivative Financial Instruments
The Company adopted SFAS 133, ""Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,'' and
its amendments, Statements No. 137 and 138, on September 1, 2000. SFAS 133 requires that all derivative
instruments be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value.
ReclassiÑcations
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassiÑed to conform to the current year presentation.
Use of Estimates
In preparing Ñnancial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that aÅect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the Ñnancial
statements and revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could diÅer from these
estimates.
New Accounting Pronouncements
In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS 144, ""Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.'' This Standard requires the recognition and measurement
of the impairment of long-lived assets to be held and used and the measurement of long-lived assets to be
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LUBY'S, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
disposed of by sale. The Company plans to adopt the pronouncement in Ñscal 2003. The Company does not
expect a material impact on its results of operations or Ñnancial condition as a result of the adoption of this
Standard.
The Company has accounted for the cessation of operations under the provisions of Emerging Issues Task
Force No. 94-3, ""Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination BeneÑts and Other Costs to Exit
an Activity.'' In June 2002, FASB issued SFAS 146, ""Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities.'' The Company will also adopt the accounting requirement of SFAS 146 in Ñscal 2003 and does not
anticipate the eÅects to the Ñnancial statements to be material.
Note 2.

Short-Term Investments

The Company maintained a balance of $24.1 million and $20.0 million in short-term investments as of
August 28, 2002, and August 31, 2001, respectively. This cash is invested in money-market funds and time
deposits.
Note 3.

Income Taxes

Following is a recap of deferred income tax assets and liabilities as of the Ñscal year-end:
August 28,
August 31,
2002
2001
(In thousands)

Net deferred long-term income tax liability and other credits
Less: other credits
Net deferred long-term income tax liability
Net deferred short-term income tax asset
Net deferred income tax asset (liability)

$(5,460)
1,653

$(2,673)
1,852

(3,807)
2,726

(821)
3,192

$(1,081)

$ 2,371

The tax eÅect of temporary diÅerences results in deferred income tax assets and liabilities as of the Ñscal
year-end as follows:
August 28,
August 31,
2002
2001
(In thousands)

Deferred tax assets:
Workers' compensation, employee injury, and general liability claims
Deferred compensation
Asset impairments and restaurant closure reserves
Other

$ 3,501
1,806
19,243
Ì

$ 4,613
1,482
21,108
318

Total deferred tax assets

24,550

27,521

Deferred tax liabilities:
Amortization of capitalized interest
Depreciation and amortization
Other

7
23,643
1,981

484
22,023
2,643

Total deferred tax liabilities

25,631

25,150

$(1,081)

$ 2,371

Net deferred tax asset (liability)
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LUBY'S, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
The reconciliation of the (beneÑt) provision for income taxes to the expected income tax (beneÑt)
expense (computed using the statutory tax rate) is as follows:
2002
Amount

Normally expected income
tax (beneÑt) expense
State income taxes
Jobs tax credits
Other diÅerences

2001
2000
%
Amount
%
Amount
(In thousands and as a percent of pretax income)

%

$(5,026)
Ì
(218)
537

(35.0)%
Ì
(1.5)
3.7

$(17,073)
125
(381)
431

(35.0)%
.3
(.8)
.9

$4,697
35.0%
163
1.2
(152) (1.1)
(412) (3.1)

$(4,707)

(32.8)%

$(16,898)

(34.6)%

$4,296

32.0%

Cash payments for state and federal income taxes for 2002, 2001, and 2000 were $19,000, $92,000, and
$8.7 million, respectively.
Note 4.

Property, Plant, and Equipment

The cost and accumulated depreciation of property, plant, and equipment at August 28, 2002, and
August 31, 2001, together with the related estimated useful lives used in computing depreciation and
amortization, were as follows:
August 28,
August 31,
2002
2001
(In thousands)

Land
Restaurant equipment and furnishings
Buildings
Leasehold and leasehold improvements
OÇce furniture and equipment
Transportation equipment
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

Note 5.

$ 73,664
138,846
236,806
33,107
12,330
811
Ì

$ 79,977
135,670
236,091
35,582
11,486
937
289

495,564
205,597

500,032
194,852

$289,967

$305,180

Estimated
Useful Lives

Ì
3 to 15 years
20 to 40 years
Term of leases
5 to 10 years
5 years
Ì

Current Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Current accrued expenses and other liabilities at August 28, 2002, consist of:
August 28,
August 31,
2002
2001
(In thousands)

Salaries and bonuses
Taxes, other than income
Accrued claims and insurance
Legal, rent, and other
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$ 4,986
6,833
7,888
2,028

$ 6,017
10,124
9,808
2,244

$21,735

$28,193

LUBY'S, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Note 6.

Debt

Senior Debt
Five payments totaling $3.6 million were made in Ñscal 2002 which reduced the balance of the credit
facility to $118.4 million. These payments were made in compliance with the credit agreement, which requires
that the Company pay the outstanding balance down in amounts equal to all proceeds received from the sale
of real and personal property. The interest rate was prime plus 1.5% at both August 28, 2002, and August 31,
2001.
Under the agreement terms that were in place during Ñscal 2002 and through the Ñrst quarter of Ñscal
2003, the Company was required to meet certain indicated EBITDA levels. EBITDA is deÑned in the
agreement as earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization, and noncash executive compensation.
The annual EBITDA requirement was met for Ñscal year 2002. However, the Company fell short of its fourthquarter EBITDA requirement. After the end of the 2002 Ñscal year, management obtained a waiver for the
fourth-quarter requirement and an amendment to the debt agreement.
The amendment extended the debt's maturity to October 31, 2004, and increased the applicable interest
rate from prime plus 1.5% to prime plus 2.5%. Additionally, the Ñnancial covenant was changed from quarterly
and annual EBITDA measurements to one that assesses liquidity and future debt service. Management
believes the new covenant is achievable and considers it to be more appropriate for the collateralized credit
facility.
Meanwhile, the Company has executed a commitment letter with another Ñnancial entity for an
$80 million loan. Its purpose is to replace that amount of debt in the existing credit facility. Thus, the
amendment discussed above requires that the entire proceeds from the other Ñnancial entity be used to pay
down the credit facility. In the event the Company is unable to make the $80 million payment as currently
planned, the amended loan would be in default. The existing lenders would then have the right to exercise any
and all remedies, including the right to demand immediate repayment of the entire outstanding balance or the
right to pursue foreclosure on the assets pledged as collateral. As of August 28, 2002, $246.4 million of the
Company's total book value, or 71.9% of its total assets, including the Company's owned real estate,
improvements, equipment, and Ñxtures, was pledged as collateral under the credit facility. The nonbinding
commitment letter with the new lender is subject to conditions the Company must satisfy before the actual
Ñnancing can occur. Management is currently working toward this goal and has high conÑdence that the
transaction will be completed and the Ñnancing closed by January 31, 2003.
The Company also could pursue other options if its current reÑnancing plans cannot be Ñnalized. Those
options include Ñnancing through high-yield debt at higher than commercial rates or conducting additional
equity security sales through public or private oÅerings. Dilution to existing shareholders would result in the
case of equity security sales.
Assuming the $80 million requirement is met, the amended facility also includes two principal payments.
The Ñrst is a target of $15 million that is also to be paid by January 31, 2003, from either operating cash Öow
or proceeds from the sale of property. Failure to pay the entire $15 million would result in a 1% increase in the
applicable interest rate from prime plus 2.5% to prime plus 3.5%. The second payment, from operating cash
Öow or property sales, is an additional $10 million by September 1, 2003. Again, payment of any amount less
than $10 million would result in another 1% increase in the applicable interest rate.
The accompanying consolidated Ñnancial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which
contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. As
explained above, the Company amended its credit facility after August 28, 2002, to change certain Ñnancial
covenants, extend the term, and amend various provisions. As referenced above, the amended bank facility
requires that the $80 million in proceeds from the new asset-based lender be used to pay down the credit
facility by January 31, 2003. There are no assurances, however, that the Company will be able to close the
pending Ñnancing that is necessary to satisfy payments required by the Company's amended bank facility.
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LUBY'S, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
The credit facility includes a provision for the issuance of letters of credit in the amount of $1,184,000 and
allows the Company to acquire additional letters of credit in the ordinary course of business.
Interest Rate Protection Agreements
The Company had two Swaps, which eÅectively Ñxed the rate on a portion of the Öoating-rate debt
outstanding under its line of credit. The Swaps were Ñxed-rate agreements in the notional amounts of
$30 million and $15 million. Both Swaps oÅered Ñxed rates at 6.50% in exchange for the Company's Öoating
line of credit rate. The original termination date for each Swap was June 30, 2002. Due to declining interest
rates and in anticipation of additional future unfavorable interest rate changes, the Company terminated its
Swaps on July 2, 2001, for a cash payment of $1.3 million, including accrued interest of $163,000. In
accordance with SFAS 133, the loss of $1.1 million was recognized as interest expense over the original term
of the Swaps through June 30, 2002. Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) was fully amortized
before the end of Ñscal year 2002.
Subordinated Debt
On March 9, 2001, the Company's newly appointed CEO and COO, Christopher J. Pappas and Harris J.
Pappas, respectively, committed to loaning the Company a total of $10 million in exchange for convertible
subordinated notes that were funded in the fourth quarter of Ñscal 2001. The notes, as formally executed, bear
interest at LIBOR plus 2%, payable quarterly, and have a stated redemption date of March 1, 2011. Interest
through September 1, 2003, may be paid in a combination of cash, common stock, or both at the Company's
election, subject to certain restrictions on the amount of stock issued. All interest to date has been paid in
cash.
Notwithstanding any accrued interest that may also be converted to stock, the notes are convertible into
the Company's common stock at $5.00 per share for 2.0 million shares at the option of the holders at any time
after January 2, 2003, and prior to the stated redemption date. The market price of the Company's stock on
the commitment date (as determined by the closing price on the New York Stock Exchange on the date of
issue) was $7.34. The diÅerence between the market price and strike price of $5.00, or $2.34 per share,
multiplied by the 2.0 million convertible shares equaled approximately $4.7 million. Under the Company's
adopted intrinsic value method, applicable accounting principles require that this amount, which represents
the beneÑcial conversion feature, be recorded as both a component of paid-in capital and a discount from the
$10 million.
The conversion feature is being amortized over the term of the notes. The carrying value of the notes at
August 28, 2002, net of the unamortized discount, was approximately $5.9 million. The comparative carrying
value of the notes at August 31, 2001, was approximately $5.4 million.
Interest Expense
Total interest expense incurred for 2002, 2001, and 2000 was $10.3 million, $12.0 million, and
$6.9 million, respectively, which approximated the amount paid in each year. The amounts capitalized on
qualifying properties in 2002, 2001, and 2000 were $0, $336,000, and $958,000, respectively.
Note 7.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Store Closings

In 2002 and 2001, the Company recorded a charge to operating costs of $314,000 and $30.4 million,
respectively, for asset impairment and store closure costs. In accordance with Company guidelines, management periodically reviews the Ñnancial performance of each store for indicators of impairment or indicators
that closure would be appropriate. Where indicators are present, such as three full Ñscal years of negative cash
Öows or other unfavorable market conditions, the carrying values of assets are written down to the estimated
future discounted cash Öows or fully written oÅ in the case of negative cash Öows anticipated in the future.
Estimated future cash Öows are based upon regression analyses generated from similar Company restaurants,
discounted at the Company's weighted-average cost of capital.
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Fiscal 2002 Restaurant Impairments and Closings
No restaurants were impaired during Ñscal 2002. The Company closed one restaurant not previously
designated for closure. The net provision for asset impairment and restaurant closings includes the labor
termination costs and the loss associated with closing the restaurant, which were both oÅset by the charge
reversals for two lease settlements that were slightly more favorable than originally anticipated.
Fiscal 2001 Restaurant Impairments and Closings
During Ñscal 2001, the Company recorded a pretax charge of $30.4 million as a result of its reviews for
impairments in accordance with SFAS 121 and assessments of closure costs. The principal components of the
Ñscal 2001 charge were as follows:
Restaurants Designated for Closure Ì Charges of $11.6 million were incurred for the closing of
15 underperforming restaurants, two of which are still operating. This charge included the cost to write
down the properties and equipment to net realizable value and estimated costs for the settlement of lease
obligations, legal and professional fees, and other exit costs. Employee severance costs were not accrued
as of August 31, 2001, but were paid out and primarily expensed in the period of closure. (As explained
below, two other restaurants were closed for remodel and conversion to new concepts.)
Impaired Restaurants Ì Charges of $17.0 million were incurred for asset impairment of 13 restaurants,
ten of which the Company continues to operate. In accordance with SFAS 121, the properties were
written down to the estimated future discounted cash Öows or fully written oÅ in the case of negative
future cash Öows.
Property Under Dissolved Joint Venture Ì Charges of $.8 million were incurred primarily for the
impairment of one property operated under a joint venture with Waterstreet, Inc. The joint venture,
L&W Seafood, Inc., was terminated in 1999. However, the property used by the joint venture was
retained for a time to evaluate its potential use. This location remained vacant for over a year, after which
time the Company decided against retaining it. This property was written down to its estimated net
realizable value and was sold in Ñscal year 2001.
New Concepts Ì Charges of $1.0 million were associated with the write-oÅ of assets for two locations
that were slated for remodel and conversion to new concepts before the end of Ñscal year 2002. The
Company closed both units by October 31, 2001. Property that could not be salvaged, transferred, or
eÅectively reused was written oÅ. One of the two locations was reopened as a seafood restaurant in the
second quarter of Ñscal 2002. Plans for the second conversion are still in progress.
Operating Results for Restaurants Designated for Closure
The results of operations for the 15 restaurants designated for closure were as follows:
August 28,
2002

Sales
Operating loss

$ 6,479
(3,262)

Year Ended
August 31,
August 31,
2001
2000
(In thousands)

$19,327
(4,289)

$19,190
(3,145)

Reserve for Restaurant Closings
At August 28, 2002, and August 31, 2001, the Company had a reserve for restaurant closings of
$3.1 million and $4.5 million, respectively. Excluding lease termination settlements, it is anticipated that all
material cash outlays required for the store closings planned as of August 31, 2001, will be made prior to the
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end of Ñscal 2003. The following is a summary of the types and amounts recognized as accrued expenses
together with cash payments made against such accruals for the three years ended August 28, 2002:
Lease
Settlement
Costs

Reserve Balance
Legal and
Professional
Workforce
Fees
Severance
(In thousands)

As of August 31, 1999
Additions (reductions)
Cash payments

$ 3,907
675
(3,817)

$1,000
350
(975)

As of August 31, 2000
Additions (reductions)
Cash payments

765
4,196
(755)

375
(375)
Ì

As of August 31, 2001
Additions (reductions)
Cash payments

4,206
(373)
(856)

Ì
Ì
Ì

As of August 28, 2002
Note 8.

$ 2,977

$

Ì

$

$ 5,067
1,700
(4,952)

375
(59)
(316)

300
693
(693)

1,815
4,455
(1,764)

Ì
Ì
Ì

300
Ì
(163)

4,506
(373)
(1,019)

Ì

$

Total
Reserve

88
300
(88)

$

72
375
(72)

Other
Exit Costs

$ 137

$ 3,114

Commitments and Contingencies

OÇcer Loans
In Ñscal 1999, the Company guaranteed loans of approximately $1.9 million relating to purchases of
Company stock by oÇcers of the Company. Under the oÇcer loan program, shares were purchased and
funding was obtained from JPMorgan Chase Bank. As of August 28, 2002, the notes, which mature in Ñscal
2004, have an outstanding balance of approximately $1.6 million. In the event of possible default, the
Company would purchase the loans from JPMorgan Chase Bank, become holder of the notes, record the
receivables, and pursue collection in the event that note requirements are not met. The purchased Company
stock has been and can be used by borrowers to satisfy a portion of their loan obligation. As of August 28,
2002, based on the market price on that day, approximately $505,000, or 31.6% of the note balances, could
have been covered by stock, while approximately $1.1 million, or 68.4%, would have remained outstanding.
Pending Claims
Two former restaurant assistant managers have Ñled suit in federal district court alleging violations of the
Fair Labor Standards Act and the commission of certain fraudulent acts by the Company. The plaintiÅs also
seek authorization to represent a class of all assistant managers employed by the Company throughout the
United States who they claim, on information and belief, are similarly without the requisite job duties and
responsibilities to be considered exempt from the overtime requirements of the Fair Labor Standards Act. The
Company has asserted that no class is appropriate, that plaintiÅs were exempt from the right to overtime
compensation under the Fair Labor Standards Act under the white collar exemptions, and has denied any
misrepresentations. The complaint does not specify the total amount of damages being sought. The court
denied plaintiÅs' request to certify a nationwide class, and instead certiÑed a class consisting of assistant
managers that worked in the Memphis area from August 1999 to July 2002. The plaintiÅs are still seeking to
expand the class beyond Memphis. The Company believes that the allegations are unfounded and intends to
continue to diligently contest the claims of the plaintiÅs.
The Company is presently, and from time to time, subject to pending claims and lawsuits arising in the
ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, other than the litigation described above, the
outcome of which is not yet determined, the resolution of all other pending legal proceedings will not have a
material adverse eÅect on the Company's operations or consolidated Ñnancial position.
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Surety Bonds
At August 28, 2002, surety bonds in the amount of $10.1 million have been issued as security for the
payment of insurance obligations classiÑed as accrued expenses on the balance sheet.
Note 9.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The Company's comprehensive income (loss) is comprised of net income (loss) and adjustments to
derivative Ñnancial instruments. The components of comprehensive income (loss) were as follows:
August 28,
August 31,
2002
2001
(In thousands)

Net income (loss)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes:
Cumulative eÅect of a change in accounting for derivative Ñnancial
instruments upon adoption of SFAS 133, net of taxes of $61
Net derivative loss, net of taxes of $514
ReclassiÑcation adjustment for loss included in net income (loss), net
of taxes of $71
ReclassiÑcation adjustment for loss recognized on termination of
interest rate swaps, net of taxes of $64
ReclassiÑcation adjustment for loss recognized on termination of
interest rate swaps, net of taxes of $318

$(9,653)

Comprehensive income (loss)

$(9,061)

Note 10.

$(31,881)

Ì
Ì

114
(958)

Ì

133

Ì

119

592

Ì
$(32,473)

Leases

The Company conducts part of its operations from facilities that are leased under noncancelable lease
agreements. Most of the leases are for periods of ten to twenty-Ñve years and provide for contingent rentals
based on sales in excess of a base amount. Approximately 87% of the leases contain renewal options ranging
from Ñve to thirty years.
Annual future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases as of August 28, 2002, are
as follows:
Year Ending:

August 27,
August 25,
August 31,
August 30,
August 29,
Thereafter

(In thousands)

2003
2004
2005
2006
2007

$ 6,028
5,655
5,261
4,672
4,288
22,245

Total minimum lease payments

$48,149
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Total rent expense for operating leases for the last three Ñscal years was as follows:

Minimum rentals
Contingent rentals

Note 11.

August 28,
2002

Year Ended
August 31,
2001
(In thousands)

August 31,
2000

$6,512
770

$6,914
437

$6,829
660

$7,282

$7,351

$7,489

Employee BeneÑt Plans and Agreements

Executive Stock Options
In connection with their employment agreements eÅective March 9, 2001, the CEO and the COO were
granted approximately 2.2 million stock options at a strike price of $5.00 per share, which was below the
quoted market price on the date of grant. From that date through Ñscal 2004, the Company will recognize a
total of $5.2 million in noncash compensation expense associated with these options. Totals of $1.3 million and
$1.9 million were recognized for Ñscal 2002 and 2001, respectively. Of the $5.2 million to be recognized,
$3.2 million has been recognized to date, while $2.0 million remains to be amortized.
All Stock Options
The Company has an incentive stock plan to provide for market-based incentive awards, including stock
options, stock appreciation rights, and restricted stock. Under this plan, stock options may be granted at prices
not less than 100% of fair market value on the date of grant. Options granted to the participants of the plan are
exercisable over staggered periods and expire, depending upon the type of grant, in Ñve to ten years. The plan
provides for various vesting methods, depending upon the category of personnel.
During 1999, the Company authorized 2.0 million shares of the Company's common stock for the plan.
Under its terms, including the 1999 authorization, nonqualiÑed stock options, incentive stock options, and
other types of awards for not more than 4.9 million shares of the Company's common stock may be granted to
eligible employees of the Company. As previously stated, the Company also granted 2.2 million options to the
CEO and the COO in conjunction with their employment agreements. Neither individual has exercised any of
these options.
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Following is a summary of activity in the Company's incentive stock plan and the executive stock options
for the three years ended August 28, 2002, and August 31, 2001 and 2000:
Weighted-Average
Exercise Price Per
Share Ì Options
Outstanding

Options
Outstanding

Balances Ì August 31, 1999
Granted
Cancelled or expired
Exercised
Balances Ì August 31, 2000
Granted
Cancelled or expired
Exercised
Balances Ì August 31, 2001
Granted
Cancelled or expired
Exercised

$16.47
11.40
15.21
Ì
15.30
5.26
13.95
Ì
8.93
6.21
14.10
5.44

2,036,628
622,000
(363,087)
Ì
2,295,541
2,958,000
(747,300)
Ì
4,506,241
133,500
(435,306)
(10,100)

Balances Ì August 28, 2002

$ 8.31

4,194,335

Balances of Exercisable Options as of:
August 31, 2000
August 31, 2001
August 28, 2002

524,939
1,441,490
2,242,095

Exercise prices for options outstanding as of August 28, 2002, range from $5.00 to $23.125 per share. The
weighted-average remaining contractual life of these options is 6.1 years. Excluding 1,120,000 executive stock
options with an exercise price of $5.00 per share, the exercisable options as of August 28, 2002, have a
weighted-average exercise price of $14.12 per share.

30

LUBY'S, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Options Outstanding and Exercisable by Price Range
As of August 28, 2002
Options Outstanding

Options Exercisable

Range of
Exercise Prices

Number
Outstanding
As of 8/28/02

WeightedAverage
Remaining
Contractual Life

$ 5.0000 - $ 5.0000
5.4375 - 5.5200
6.0000 - 12.0625
13.9375 - 15.3750
15.4375 - 15.4375
15.9375 - 19.1250
20.2500 - 20.2500
21.6250 - 21.6250
22.7500 - 22.7500
23.1250 - 23.1250

2,240,000
425,150
511,250
308,255
480,762
181,895
10,750
10,000
14,998
11,275

8.53
4.34
4.44
2.34
2.53
1.79
4.10
3.38
2.38
0.13

$ 5.0000
5.4469
9.8347
14.6679
15.4375
18.3417
20.2500
21.6250
22.7500
23.1250

1,120,000
102,900
218,500
225,454
364,870
163,348
10,750
10,000
14,998
11,275

$ 5.0000
5.4375
10.4661
14.6627
15.4375
18.5402
20.2500
21.6250
22.7500
23.1250

$ 5.0000 - $23.1250

4,194,335

6.10

$ 8.3110

2,242,095

$ 9.5666

WeightedAverage
Exercise Price

Number
Exercisable
As of 8/28/02

WeightedAverage
Exercise Price

At August 28, 2002, and August 31, 2001, the number of incentive stock option shares available to be
granted under the plans was 653,561 and 874,810 shares, respectively.
The weighted-average fair value of the individual options granted during 2002, 2001, and 2000 is
estimated at $3.38, $3.16, and $1.51, respectively, on the date of grant. The fair values were determined using
a Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions:
2002

Dividend yield
Volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Expected life

2001

2000

Ì
Ì
6.90%
.35
.41
.22
3.56% 4.44% 7.00%
6.18
8.65
6.11

If the Company had converted to the fair-value method of expensing stock options as alternatively
allowed under FAS 123, its net income (loss) would have been $(10.4) million, $(31.6) million, and
$8.9 million in Ñscal 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively. Earnings (loss) per share would have been $(.47),
$(1.41), and $.40 for Ñscal 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively.
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan
The Company has a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP) for key executives and oÇcers.
The SERP is a ""target'' beneÑt plan, with the annual lifetime beneÑt based upon a percentage of average
salary during the Ñnal Ñve years of service at age 65, oÅset by several sources of income including beneÑts
payable under deferred compensation agreements, if applicable, the proÑt sharing plan, and Social Security.
SERP beneÑts will be paid from the Company's assets. The net expense incurred for this plan for the years
ended August 28, 2002, and August 31, 2001 and 2000, was $64,000, $296,000, and $161,000, respectively,
and the unfunded accrued pension liability as of August 28, 2002, and August 31, 2001 and 2000, was
approximately $665,000, $622,000, and $692,000, respectively.
The Company also has a voluntary 401(k) employee savings plan to provide substantially all salaried and
hourly employees of the Company an opportunity to accumulate personal funds for their retirement. These
contributions may be made on a pre-tax basis to the plan. In 2001, the Company began matching 25% of
participants' contributions up to 4% of their salary. The net expense recognized in connection with the
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employer match feature of the voluntary 401(k) employee savings plan for the years ended August 28, 2002,
and August 31, 2001, was $311,000 and $270,000, respectively.
During 1999, the Company established a nonqualiÑed deferred compensation plan for highly compensated executives allowing deferral of a portion of their annual salary and up to 100% of bonuses before taxes.
The Company does not match any deferral amounts and retains ownership of all assets until distributed. The
liability under this deferred compensation plan at August 28, 2002, and August 31, 2001, was approximately
$54,000 and $70,000, respectively.
ProÑt Sharing
The Company has a proÑt sharing and retirement trust plan (the Plan) covering substantially all
employees who have attained the age of 21 years and have completed one year of continuous service. The Plan
is administered by a corporate trustee, is a ""qualiÑed plan'' under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue
Code, and provides for the payment of the employee's vested portion of the Plan upon retirement, termination,
disability, or death. The Plan has been funded by contributions of a portion of the net earnings of the
Company. The Plan was amended eÅective August 31, 2001, to make all contributions discretionary. No
annual contributions to the Plan were made in Ñscal 2002 or 2001, while $700,000 was contributed in Ñscal
2000.
Note 12.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133 (SFAS 133), ""Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,'' and its amendments, Statement Nos. 137 and 138, on
September 1, 2000. SFAS 133 requires that all derivative instruments be recorded on the balance sheet at fair
value. Pursuant to this Standard, the Company designated its Interest Rate Protection Agreements (Swaps)
as cash Öow hedge instruments. Swaps have been used to manage exposure to interest rate movement by
eÅectively changing the variable rate to a Ñxed rate. The critical terms of the Swaps and the interest-bearing
debt associated with the Swaps were the same; therefore, the Company assumed that there was no
ineÅectiveness in the hedge relationship. Due to declining interest rates and in anticipation of additional future
unfavorable interest rate changes, the Company terminated the Swaps on July 2, 2001, for a cash payment of
$1.3 million, including accrued interest of $163,000. Changes in fair value of the Swaps were recognized in
other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax eÅects, until the hedged items were recognized in earnings.
In accordance with SFAS 133, the loss of $1.1 million was recognized as interest expense over the
original term of the Swaps (through June 30, 2002). At August 28, 2002, there was no balance in
accumulated other comprehensive loss.
Note 13.

Related Parties

ProÑt Sharing and Retirement Trust Plan Investment Advisors
Austin, Calvert & Flavin, Inc. is a Ñrm that provides investment services for the Company's proÑt sharing
and retirement trust plan (the Plan). EÅective October 25, 2002, Ronald K. Calgaard, a director of Austin,
Calvert & Flavin, Inc., resigned from his position as a member of Luby's Board of Directors. Mr. Calgaard had
previously resigned his position as Chairman of the Finance and Audit Committee of Luby's board on
September 23, 2002.
The Company currently uses the services of four investment advisors for its proÑt sharing and retirement
trust plan. The Plan paid Austin, Calvert & Flavin, Inc. approximately $60,000, $74,000, and $100,000 in
Ñscal 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively.
AÇliate Services
The CEO and COO of the Company, Christopher J. Pappas and Harris J. Pappas, respectively, own two
restaurant entities that provide services to Luby's, Inc. as detailed in the AÇliate Services Agreement and the
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Master Sales Agreement. Under the terms of the agreements, the Pappas entities have provided specialized
equipment fabrication; warehouse leasing; basic equipment maintenance; and accounting, architectural, and
general business services. The scope and pricing of services rendered under the agreements are reviewed
periodically by the Finance and Audit Committee of the Company's Board. The Committee uses the services
of the Company's external auditors and independent valuation consultants to monitor the transactions
associated with the agreement.
As part of the aÇliated relationship, the Company entered into a three-year lease which commenced on
June 1, 2001, and ends May 31, 2004. The amount paid by the Company pursuant to the terms of this lease
was approximately $78,000 for the year ended August 28, 2002. The agreement also includes the costs
incurred for modiÑcations to existing equipment, as well as custom-fabrication, including stainless steel stoves,
shelving, rolling carts, and chef tables. The total cost of the custom-fabricated and refurbished equipment for
Ñscal 2002 was $506,000. All amounts charged under the agreements were paid in Ñscal 2002 except for the
most recent expenditures of approximately $104,000, which were paid in the Ñrst quarter of Ñscal 2003.
Operating Lease
In a separate contract from the AÇliate Services Agreement, pursuant to the terms of a ground lease
dated March 25, 1994, the Company paid rent to PHCG Investments for a Luby's restaurant operating in
Dallas, Texas. Christopher J. Pappas and Harris J. Pappas are general partners of PHCG Investments. The
amount paid by the Company to PHCG Investments pursuant to the terms of the lease agreement during
Ñscal year 2002 was approximately $85,000. Rents paid for both the ground lease and the AÇliate Services
Agreement lease combined represent 2.2% of total rents paid by the Company for the year ended August 28,
2002.
The Company has entered into a Lease Termination Agreement, with a third party unaÇliated with the
Pappas entities, to sever its interest in the leased property in exchange for a payment of cash, obtain the right
to remove Ñxtures and equipment from the premises, and Ñnalize the release of any future obligations under
the lease agreement now owned by PHCG Investments. The closing of the transaction is conditioned upon the
third party acquiring fee simple title to the property from PHCG Investments.
Subordinated Debt
As described in Note 6 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in the section entitled
""Subordinated Debt,'' the CEO and the COO loaned the Company a total of $10 million in the form of
convertible subordinated notes to support the Company's future operating cash needs. The entire balance was
outstanding as of August 28, 2002.
Board of Directors
Pursuant to the terms of a separate Purchase Agreement dated March 9, 2001, entered into by and
among the Company, Christopher J. Pappas and Harris J. Pappas, the Company agreed to submit three
persons designated by Christopher J. Pappas and Harris J. Pappas as nominees for election for directors.
Messrs. Pappas designated themselves and Frank Markantonis as their nominees for directors, all of whom
were subsequently elected. Christopher J. Pappas and Harris J. Pappas are brothers. As disclosed in the proxy
statement for the January 11, 2002, annual meeting of shareholders, Frank Markantonis is an attorney whose
principal client is Pappas Restaurants, Inc., an entity owned by Harris J. Pappas and Christopher J. Pappas.
Key Management Personnel
Ernest Pekmezaris, the Chief Financial OÇcer of the Company, is also the Treasurer of Pappas
Restaurants, Inc. Compensation for the services provided by Mr. Pekmezaris to Pappas Restaurants, Inc. is
paid entirely by that entity.
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Peter Tropoli, the Senior Vice President-Administration of the Company, is an attorney who, from time
to time, has provided litigation services to entities controlled by Christopher J. Pappas and Harris J. Pappas.
Mr. Tropoli is the stepson of Frank Markantonis, who, as previously mentioned, is a director of the Company.
Paulette Gerukos, Administration Assistant of the Human Resources Department of the Company, is the
sister-in-law of Harris J. Pappas, the Chief Operating OÇcer.
Note 14.

Common Stock

In 1991, the Board of Directors adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan and declared a dividend of one
common stock purchase right for each outstanding share of common stock. The rights are not initially
exercisable. The Company amended the Shareholder Rights Plan eÅective March 8, 2001. The rights may
become exercisable under circumstances described in the plan if any person or group becomes the beneÑcial
owner of 15% or more of the common stock or announces a tender or exchange oÅer, the completion of which
would result in the ownership by a person or group of 15% or more of the common stock (either, an Acquiring
Person). Once the rights become exercisable, each right will be exercisable to purchase, for $27.50 (the
Purchase Price), one-half of one share of common stock, par value $.32 per share, of the Company. If any
person becomes an Acquiring Person, each right will entitle the holder, other than the Acquiring Person, to
purchase for the Purchase Price a number of shares of the Company's common stock having a market value of
four times the Purchase Price.
In connection with the employment of Christopher J. Pappas, the Company's President and Chief
Executive OÇcer, and Harris J. Pappas, the Company's Chief Operating OÇcer, the Shareholder Rights Plan
was amended to exempt from the operation of the plan Messrs. Pappas' ownership of the Company's common
stock, which was acquired prior to March 8, 2001 (and certain additional shares permitted to be acquired) and
certain shares of common stock which may be acquired in connection with options issued on the date of their
employment and the convertible notes subsequently purchased from the Company.
The Board of Directors periodically authorizes the purchase in the open market of shares of the
Company's outstanding common stock. Under such authorizations, the Company purchased 850,300 shares of
its common stock at a cost of $12,919,000 in 1999, which are being held as treasury stock.
Common stock is reserved for approximately 4,194,000 for issuance upon the exercise of outstanding
stock options and 2.0 million shares for issuance upon the conversion of subordinated notes.

34

LUBY'S, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Note 15.

Per Share Information

A reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of basic earnings per share and earnings per share
assuming dilution is shown in the table below:
August 28,
2002

Numerator:
Net income (loss)
EÅect of potentially dilutive securities:
Interest on convertible subordinated notes

$(9,653)

August 31,
August 31,
2001
2000
(In thousands)

$(31,881)

585

Numerator for net income (loss) per common share Ì
diluted
Denominator for basic earnings per share Ì weighted-average
shares
EÅect of potentially dilutive securities:
Employee stock options
Convertible subordinated notes
Denominator for earnings per share Ì assuming dilution Ì
adjusted weighted-average shares
Net income (loss) per share Ì basic
(a)

Net income (loss) per share Ì assuming dilution

$ 9,125

194

Ì

$(9,068)

$(31,687)

$ 9,125

22,428

22,422

22,420

165
2,000

96
312

2
Ì

24,593

22,830

22,422

$ (0.43)

$

(1.42)

$

0.41

$ (0.43)

$

(1.42)

$

0.41

(a)

As the Company had a net loss for the years ended August 28, 2002, and August 31, 2001, earnings per
share assuming dilution equals basic earnings per share since potentially dilutive securities are antidilutive in
loss periods.

Note 16.

Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of quarterly unaudited Ñnancial information for 2002 and 2001:
August 28,
2002
(112
days)

Sales
Gross proÑts
Net income (loss)
Net income (loss) per share

$119,543
48,600
(1,971)
$
(.09)
August 31,
2001
(92 days)

Sales
Gross proÑts
Net income (loss)
Net income (loss) per share

$119,365
41,676
(19,383)*
$
(.86)*

Quarter Ended
May 8,
February 13,
November 21,
2002
2002
2001
(84 days)
(84 days)
(82 days)
(In thousands except per share data)

$93,070
40,771
(174)
$ (.01)

$91,257
38,387
(2,163)
$ (.09)

$95,195
35,953
(5,345)
$ (.24)

Quarter Ended
May 31,
February 28,
November 30,
2001
2001
2000
(92 days)
(90 days)
(91 days)
(In thousands except per share data)

$121,677
50,118
(1,066)
$
(.05)

$112,219
45,859
(9,424)*
$
(.42)*

$113,900
45,330
(2,008)
$
(.09)

*See Note 7 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for discussion of impairment charges recorded
during the second and fourth quarters of Ñscal year 2001.
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Item 9.

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.
PART III
Item 10.

Directors and Executive OÇcers of the Registrant

There is incorporated in this Item 10 by reference that portion of the Company's deÑnitive proxy
statement for the 2003 annual meeting of shareholders appearing therein under the captions ""Election of
Directors,'' ""Certain Relationships and Related Transactions,'' and ""Section 16(a) Ownership Reporting
Compliance.'' See also the information in Item 4A of Part I of this Report.
Item 11.

Executive Compensation

There is incorporated in this Item 11 by reference that portion of the Company's deÑnitive proxy
statement for the 2003 annual meeting of shareholders appearing therein under the captions ""Compensation of
Directors,'' ""Personnel and Administrative Policy Committee Report,'' ""Executive Compensation,'' ""Deferred
Compensation,'' and ""Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.''
Item 12.

Security Ownership of Certain BeneÑcial Owners and Management

There is incorporated in this Item 12 by reference that portion of the Company's deÑnitive proxy
statement for the 2003 annual meeting of shareholders appearing therein under the captions ""Ownership of
Equity Securities in the Company'' and ""Principal Shareholders.''
Securities authorized under equity compensation plans as of August 28, 2002, were as follows:

Plan Category

(a)

(b)

Number of Securities to be
Issued Upon Exercise of
Outstanding Options,
Warrants and Rights

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price of
Outstanding Options,
Warrants and Rights

(c)
Number of Securities
Remaining Available for
Future Issuance Under
Equity Compensation Plans
(Excluding Securities
ReÖected in Column(a))

Equity compensation
plans approved by
security holders
Equity compensation
plans not approved by
security holders

1,954,335

$12.11

653,561

2,322,630

5.10

Ì

Total

4,276,965

$ 8.30

653,561

Item 13.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

There is incorporated in this Item 13 by reference that portion of the Company's deÑnitive proxy
statement for the 2003 annual meeting of shareholders appearing therein under the caption ""Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions.''
PART IV
Item 14.

Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed in the Company's Exchange Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized, and
reported within the time periods speciÑed in the SEC's rules and forms, and that such information is
accumulated and communicated to the Company's management, including its President and CEO and its
CFO, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Management necessarily applied
its judgment in assessing the costs and beneÑts of such controls and procedures which, by their nature, can
provide only reasonable assurance regarding management's control objectives.
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During the 90 days prior to November 26, 2002, the Company carried out an evaluation of the
eÅectiveness of the design and operation of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to
Exchange Act Rule 13a-14. The Company's President and CEO and the CFO participated and provided input
into this process. Based upon the foregoing, these senior oÇcers concluded that the Company's disclosure
controls and procedures are eÅective in timely alerting them to material information relating to the Company
required to be included in the Company's Exchange Act reports.
There have been no signiÑcant changes in the Company's internal controls or in other factors which could
signiÑcantly aÅect internal controls subsequent to the date the President and CEO and the CFO carried out
their evaluation.
Item 15.

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K

(a) Documents
1.

Financial Statements
The following Ñnancial statements are Ñled as part of this Report:
Consolidated balance sheets at August 28, 2002, and August 31, 2001
Consolidated statements of operations for each of the three years in the period ended August 28, 2002
Consolidated statements of shareholders' equity for each of the three years in the period ended
August 28, 2002
Consolidated statements of cash Öows for each of the three years in the period ended August 28, 2002
Notes to consolidated Ñnancial statements
Report of independent auditors

2.

Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules are omitted since the required information is not present or is not present in amounts
suÇcient to require submission of the schedule or because the information required is included in the Ñnancial
statements and notes thereto.
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3.

Exhibits
The following exhibits are Ñled as a part of this Report:

3(a)

3(b)

4(a)
4(b)

4(c)

4(d)

4(e)

4(f)

4(g)

4(j)

4(k)

4(l)

4(m)

4(n)

4(o)

4(p)

CertiÑcate of Incorporation of Luby's, Inc. as currently in eÅect (Ñled as Exhibit 3(b) to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 1999, and incorporated
herein by reference).
Bylaws of Luby's, Inc. as currently in eÅect (Ñled as Exhibit 3(c) to the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 1998, and incorporated herein by
reference).
Description of Common Stock Purchase Rights of Luby's Cafeterias, Inc., in Form 8-A (Ñled
April 17, 1991, eÅective April 26, 1991, File No. 1-8308, and incorporated herein by reference).
Amendment No. 1 dated December 19, 1991, to Rights Agreement dated April 16, 1991 (Ñled as
Exhibit 4(b) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
November 30, 1991, and incorporated herein by reference).
Amendment No. 2 dated February 7, 1995, to Rights Agreement dated April 16, 1991 (Ñled as
Exhibit 4(d) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28,
1995, and incorporated herein by reference).
Amendment No. 3 dated May 29, 1995, to Rights Agreement dated April 16, 1991 (Ñled as
Exhibit 4(d) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31,
1995, and incorporated herein by reference).
Amendment No. 4 dated March 8, 2001, to Rights Agreement dated April 16, 1991 (Ñled as
Exhibit 99.1 to the Company's Report on Form 8-A12B/A on March 22, 2001, and incorporated
herein by reference).
Credit Agreement dated February 27, 1996, among Luby's Cafeterias, Inc., Certain Lenders, and
NationsBank of Texas, N.A. (Ñled as Exhibit 4(e) to the Company's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 29, 1996, and incorporated herein by reference).
First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated January 24, 1997, among Luby's Cafeterias, Inc.,
Certain Lenders, and NationsBank of Texas, N.A. (Ñled as Exhibit 4(f) to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 1997, and incorporated herein
by reference).
Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated July 3, 1997, among Luby's Cafeterias, Inc.,
Certain Lenders, and NationsBank of Texas, N.A. (Ñled as Exhibit 4(i) to the Company's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the Ñscal year ended August 31, 1997, and incorporated herein by
reference).
Third Amendment to Credit Agreement dated October 27, 2000, among Luby's, Inc., Certain
Lenders, and Bank of America, N.A. (Ñled as Exhibit 4(j) to the Company's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the Ñscal year ended August 31, 2000, and incorporated herein by reference).
Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated July 9, 2001, among Luby's, Inc., Bank of
America, N.A. and other creditors of its bank group (Ñled as Exhibit 4(l) to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by
reference).
Deed of Trust, Assignment, Security Agreement, and Financing Statement dated July 2001,
executed as part of the Fourth Amended to Credit Agreement (Ñled as Exhibit 4(m) to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2001, and incorporated
herein by reference).
Subordination and Intercreditor Agreement dated June 29, 2001, between Harris J. Pappas and
Christopher J. Pappas, Bank of America, N.A. Agreement ®as the bank group agent©, and Luby's,
Inc. (Ñled as Exhibit 4(n) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
May 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference).
Convertible Subordinated Promissory Note dated June 29, 2001, between Christopher J. Pappas
and Luby's, Inc. in the amount of $1,500,000 (Ñled as Exhibit 4(o) to the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference)
Convertible Subordinated Promissory Note dated June 29, 2001, between Harris J. Pappas and
Luby's, Inc. in the amount of $1,500,000 (Ñled as Exhibit 4(p) to the Company's Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference).
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4(q)

4(r)

4(s)

4(t)
10(c)

10(d)

10(e)

10(f)

10(g)

10(h)

10(i)

10(j)

10(k)

10(l)

10(m)

10(o)

10(p)

10(q)

Convertible Subordinated Promissory Note dated June 29, 2001, between Christopher J. Pappas
and Luby's, Inc. in the amount of $3,500,000 (Ñled as Exhibit 4(q) to the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference).
Convertible Subordinated Promissory Note dated June 29, 2001, between Harris J. Pappas and
Luby's, Inc. in the amount of $3,500,000 (Ñled as Exhibit 4(r) to the Company's Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference).
Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated December 5, 2001, among Luby's, Inc., Bank of
America, N.A. and other creditors of its bank group (Ñled as Exhibit 4(s) to the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Ñscal year ended August 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by
reference).
Sixth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated November 25, 2002, by and among Luby's, Inc.,
Bank of America, N.A. and other creditors of its bank group.
Management Incentive Stock Plan of Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. (Ñled as Exhibit 10(i) to the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Ñscal year ended August 31, 1989, and
incorporated herein by reference).*
Amendment to Management Incentive Stock Plan of Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. adopted January 14,
1997 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(k) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended February 28, 1997, and incorporated herein by reference).*
Nonemployee Director Deferred Compensation Plan of Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. adopted
October 27, 1994 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(g) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended November 30, 1994, and incorporated herein by reference).*
Amendment to Nonemployee Director Deferred Compensation Plan of Luby's Cafeterias, Inc.
adopted January 14, 1997 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(m) to the Company's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 1997, and incorporated herein by reference).*
Amendment to Nonemployee Director Deferred Compensation Plan of Luby's Cafeterias, Inc.
adopted March 19, 1998 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(o) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended February 28, 1998, and incorporated herein by reference).*
Amended and Restated Nonemployee Director Stock Option Plan of Luby's, Inc. approved by the
shareholders of Luby's, Inc. on January 14, 2000 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(j) to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 29, 2000, and incorporated herein
by reference).*
Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan dated May 30, 1996 (Ñled as
Exhibit 10(j) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Ñscal year ended August 31,
1996, and incorporated herein by reference).*
Amendment to Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan adopted
January 14, 1997 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(r) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended February 28, 1997, and incorporated herein by reference).*
Amendment to Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan adopted
January 9, 1998 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(u) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended February 28, 1998, and incorporated herein by reference).*
Amendment to Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan adopted May 21,
1999 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(q) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended May 31, 1999, and incorporated herein by reference.)*
Severance Agreement between Luby's, Inc. and Barry J.C. Parker dated December 19, 2000 (Ñled
as Exhibit 10(r) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
November 30, 2000, and incorporated herein by reference.)*
Luby's Incentive Stock Plan adopted October 16, 1998 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(cc) to the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Ñscal year ended August 31, 1998, and incorporated herein by
reference).*
Form of Change in Control Agreement entered into between Luby's, Inc. and each of its Senior
Vice Presidents as of January 8, 1999 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(aa) to the Company's Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 1999, and incorporated herein by reference).*
Luby's, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan eÅective June 1, 1999 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(cc) to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 1999, and incorporated
herein by reference).*
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10(r)

10(s)

10(t)

10(u)

10(v)

10(w)

10(x)

10(y)

10(z)

10(aa)

10(bb)

10(cc)

10(dd)

10(ee)
10(Å)
10(gg)
10(hh)

Registration Rights Agreement dated March 9, 2001, by and among Luby's, Inc., Christopher J.
Pappas, and Harris J. Pappas (Ñled as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K
dated March 9, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference).
Purchase Agreement dated March 9, 2001, by and among Luby's, Inc. Harris J. Pappas, and
Christopher J. Pappas (Ñled as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
March 9, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference).
Employment Agreement dated March 9, 2001, between Luby's, Inc. and Christopher J. Pappas
(Ñled as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 9, 2001, and
incorporated herein by reference).*
Employment Agreement dated March 9, 2001, between Luby's, Inc. and Harris J. Pappas (Ñled as
Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 9, 2001, and
incorporated herein by reference).*
Luby's, Inc. Incentive Bonus Plan for Fiscal 2001 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(z) to the Company's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the Ñscal year ended August 31, 2000, and incorporated herein by
reference).*
Luby's, Inc. Stock Option granted to Christopher J. Pappas on March 9, 2001 (Ñled as
Exhibit 10(w) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31,
2001, and incorporated herein by reference).*
Luby's, Inc. Stock Option granted to Harris J. Pappas on March 9, 2001 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(x) to
the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2001, and
incorporated herein by reference).*
AÇliate Services Agreement dated August 31, 2001, by and among Luby's, Inc., Christopher J.
Pappas, Harris J. Pappas, Pappas Restaurants, L.P., and Pappas Restaurants, Inc. (Ñled as Exhibit
10(y) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Ñscal year ended August 31, 2001,
reÑled as Exhibit 10(y) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
February 13, 2002, to include signature reference and an exhibit that were inadvertently omitted,
and incorporated herein by reference).
Ground Lease for a cafeteria site dated March 25, 1994, by and between Luby's Cafeterias, Inc.
and PHCG Investments, as amended by Lease Amendment dated July 6, 1994 (Ñled as
Exhibit 10(z) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Ñscal year ended August 31,
2001, and incorporated herein by reference).
Lease Agreement for dated June 1, 2001, by and between Luby's, Inc. and Pappas Restaurants,
Inc. (Ñled as Exhibit 10(aa) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Ñscal year
ended August 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference).
Final Severance Agreement and Release between Luby's, Inc. and Alan M. Davis dated July 20,
2001 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(bb) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Ñscal year
ended August 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference). While in search for new executive
management, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Davis in January
2001. The value of that one-year contract was a year's salary upon termination. After new
management was secured, the Company Ñnalized the exhibited agreement that provides for the
payment of monthly consulting fees to Mr. Davis until July 2002, but releases the Company from
all prior employment commitments.*
Consultant Agreement between Luby's Restaurants Limited Partnership and Alan M. Davis dated
July 20, 2001 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(cc) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
Ñscal year ended August 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference).*
Luby's, Inc. Amended and Restated Nonemployee Director Phantom Stock Plan eÅective
September 28, 2001 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(dd) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended February 13, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference).*
Final Severance Agreement and Release between Luby's, Inc. and S. Darrell Wood eÅective
July 28, 2002.*
Consultant Agreement dated August 30, 2002, between Luby's Restaurants Limited Partnership
and S. Darrell Wood.*
Form of IndemniÑcation Agreement entered into between Luby's, Inc. and each member of its
Board of Directors initially dated July 23, 2002.
Amended and Restated AÇliate Services Agreement dated July 23, 2002, by and among Luby's,
Inc., Pappas Restaurants, L.P., and Pappas Restaurants, Inc.
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10(ii)

11
21
99(a)

99(b)

Master Sales Agreement dated July 23, 2002, by and among Luby's, Inc., Pappas Restaurants,
L.P., and Pappas Restaurants, Inc. and Procedure adopted by the Finance and Audit Committee of
the Board of Directors on July 23, 2002, pursuant to Section 2.3 of the Master Sales Agreement.
Statement re computation of per share earnings.
Subsidiaries of Luby's, Inc. (Ñled as Exhibit 21 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the Ñscal year ended August 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference).
Corporate Governance Guidelines of Luby's, Inc., as amended October 25, 2001 (Ñled as
Exhibit 99(a) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
February 13, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference).
Consent of Ernst & Young LLP.

*Denotes management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
(b) Reports on Form 8-K.
No reports on Form 8-K have been Ñled during the last quarter of the period covered by this Report.

41

SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
LUBY'S, INC.
(Registrant)
By:

/s/ CHRISTOPHER J. PAPPAS
Christopher J. Pappas
President and Chief Executive OÇcer

November 25, 2002
Date
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
Signature

Title

Date

ROBERT T. HERRES
Robert T. Herres

Director and Chairman of the
Board

November 22, 2002

CHRISTOPHER J. PAPPAS
Christopher J. Pappas

Director, President and Chief
Executive OÇcer

November 22, 2002

HARRIS J. PAPPAS
Harris J. Pappas

Director, Chief Operating OÇcer

November 22, 2002

ERNEST PEKMEZARIS
Ernest Pekmezaris

Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial OÇcer

November 22, 2002

JUDITH B. CRAVEN
Judith B. Craven

Director

November 22, 2002

ARTHUR R. EMERSON
Arthur R. Emerson

Director

November 22, 2002

ROGER R. HEMMINGHAUS
Roger R. Hemminghaus

Director

November 22, 2002

FRANK MARKANTONIS
Frank Markantonis

Director

November 22, 2002

GASPER MIR, III
Gasper Mir, III

Director

November 22, 2002

WALTER J. SALMON
Walter J. Salmon

Director

November 22, 2002

JOANNE WINIK
Joanne Winik

Director

November 22, 2002

JIM W. WOLIVER
Jim W. Woliver

Director

November 22, 2002

/s/

/s/

/s/

/s/

/s/

/s/

/s/

/s/

/s/

/s/

/s/

/s/
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CertiÑcation Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
In connection with the Annual Report of Luby's, Inc. on Form 10-K for the Ñscal year ended August 28,
2002, as Ñled with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof, I, Christopher J. Pappas,
President and Chief Executive OÇcer of the Company, hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) The report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the report fairly presents, in all material respects, the Ñnancial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ CHRISTOPHER J. PAPPAS
Christopher J. Pappas
President and Chief Executive OÇcer
Date: November 25, 2002
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CertiÑcation Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
In connection with the Annual Report of Luby's, Inc. on Form 10-K for the Ñscal year ended August 28,
2002, as Ñled with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof, I, Ernest Pekmezaris, Senior
Vice President and Chief Financial OÇcer of the Company, hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) The report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the report fairly presents, in all material respects, the Ñnancial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ ERNEST PEKMEZARIS
Ernest Pekmezaris
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial OÇcer
Date: November 25, 2002
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CERTIFICATION
I, Christopher J. Pappas, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Luby's, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the Ñnancial statements, and other Ñnancial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects, the Ñnancial condition, results of operations and cash
Öows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;
4. The registrant's other certifying oÇcers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as deÑned in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant
and I have:
(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;
(b) evaluated the eÅectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the Ñling date of the annual report (the ""Evaluation Date''); and
(c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the eÅectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;
5. The registrant's other certifying oÇcers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to
the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):
(a) all signiÑcant deÑciencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
aÅect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report Ñnancial data and have identiÑed
for the registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and
(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
signiÑcant role in the registrant's internal controls; and
6. The registrant's other certifying oÇcers and I have indicated in this annual report whether there were
signiÑcant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could signiÑcantly aÅect internal controls
subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to signiÑcant
deÑciencies and material weaknesses.

/s/ CHRISTOPHER J. PAPPAS
Christopher J. Pappas
President and Chief Executive OÇcer
Date: November 25, 2002
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CERTIFICATION
I, Ernest Pekmezaris, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Luby's, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the Ñnancial statements, and other Ñnancial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects, the Ñnancial condition, results of operations and cash
Öows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;
4. The registrant's other certifying oÇcers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as deÑned in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant
and I have:
(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;
(b) evaluated the eÅectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the Ñling date of the annual report (the ""Evaluation Date''); and
(c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the eÅectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;
5. The registrant's other certifying oÇcers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to
the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):
(a) all signiÑcant deÑciencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
aÅect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report Ñnancial data and have identiÑed
for the registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and
(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
signiÑcant role in the registrant's internal controls; and
6. The registrant's other certifying oÇcers and I have indicated in this annual report whether there were
signiÑcant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could signiÑcantly aÅect internal controls
subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to signiÑcant
deÑciencies and material weaknesses.

/s/ ERNEST PEKMEZARIS
Ernest Pekmezaris
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial OÇcer
Date: November 25, 2002
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4(o)
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CertiÑcate of Incorporation of Luby's, Inc. as currently in eÅect (Ñled as Exhibit 3(b) to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 1999, and incorporated
herein by reference).
Bylaws of Luby's, Inc. as currently in eÅect (Ñled as Exhibit 3(c) to the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 1998, and incorporated herein by
reference).
Description of Common Stock Purchase Rights of Luby's Cafeterias, Inc., in Form 8-A (Ñled
April 17, 1991, eÅective April 26, 1991, File No. 1-8308, and incorporated herein by reference).
Amendment No. 1 dated December 19, 1991, to Rights Agreement dated April 16, 1991 (Ñled as
Exhibit 4(b) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
November 30, 1991, and incorporated herein by reference).
Amendment No. 2 dated February 7, 1995, to Rights Agreement dated April 16, 1991 (Ñled as
Exhibit 4(d) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28,
1995, and incorporated herein by reference).
Amendment No. 3 dated May 29, 1995, to Rights Agreement dated April 16, 1991 (Ñled as
Exhibit 4(d) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31,
1995, and incorporated herein by reference).
Amendment No. 4 dated March 8, 2001, to Rights Agreement dated April 16, 1991 (Ñled as
Exhibit 99.1 to the Company's Report on Form 8-A12B/A on March 22, 2001, and incorporated
herein by reference).
Credit Agreement dated February 27, 1996, among Luby's Cafeterias, Inc., Certain Lenders, and
NationsBank of Texas, N.A. (Ñled as Exhibit 4(e) to the Company's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 29, 1996, and incorporated herein by reference).
First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated January 24, 1997, among Luby's Cafeterias, Inc.,
Certain Lenders, and NationsBank of Texas, N.A. (Ñled as Exhibit 4(f) to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 1997, and incorporated herein
by reference).
Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated July 3, 1997, among Luby's Cafeterias, Inc.,
Certain Lenders, and NationsBank of Texas, N.A. (Ñled as Exhibit 4(i) to the Company's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the Ñscal year ended August 31, 1997, and incorporated herein by
reference).
Third Amendment to Credit Agreement dated October 27, 2000, among Luby's, Inc., Certain
Lenders, and Bank of America, N.A. (Ñled as Exhibit 4(j) to the Company's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the Ñscal year ended August 31, 2000, and incorporated herein by reference).
Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated July 9, 2001, among Luby's, Inc., Bank of
America, N.A. and other creditors of its bank group (Ñled as Exhibit 4(l) to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by
reference).
Deed of Trust, Assignment, Security Agreement, and Financing Statement dated July 2001,
executed as part of the Fourth Amended to Credit Agreement (Ñled as Exhibit 4(m) to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2001, and incorporated
herein by reference).
Subordination and Intercreditor Agreement dated June 29, 2001, between Harris J. Pappas and
Christopher J. Pappas, Bank of America, N.A. Agreement ®as the bank group agent©, and Luby's,
Inc. (Ñled as Exhibit 4(n) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
May 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference).
Convertible Subordinated Promissory Note dated June 29, 2001, between Christopher J. Pappas
and Luby's, Inc. in the amount of $1,500,000 (Ñled as Exhibit 4(o) to the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference)
Convertible Subordinated Promissory Note dated June 29, 2001, between Harris J. Pappas and
Luby's, Inc. in the amount of $1,500,000 (Ñled as Exhibit 4(p) to the Company's Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference).
Convertible Subordinated Promissory Note dated June 29, 2001, between Christopher J. Pappas
and Luby's, Inc. in the amount of $3,500,000 (Ñled as Exhibit 4(q) to the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference).
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Convertible Subordinated Promissory Note dated June 29, 2001, between Harris J. Pappas and
Luby's, Inc. in the amount of $3,500,000 (Ñled as Exhibit 4(r) to the Company's Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference).
Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated December 5, 2001, among Luby's, Inc., Bank of
America, N.A. and other creditors of its bank group (Ñled as Exhibit 4(s) to the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Ñscal year ended August 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by
reference).
Sixth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated November 25, 2002, by and among Luby's, Inc.,
Bank of America, N.A. and other creditors of its bank group.
Management Incentive Stock Plan of Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. (Ñled as Exhibit 10(i) to the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Ñscal year ended August 31, 1989, and
incorporated herein by reference).*
Amendment to Management Incentive Stock Plan of Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. adopted January 14,
1997 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(k) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended February 28, 1997, and incorporated herein by reference).*
Nonemployee Director Deferred Compensation Plan of Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. adopted
October 27, 1994 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(g) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended November 30, 1994, and incorporated herein by reference).*
Amendment to Nonemployee Director Deferred Compensation Plan of Luby's Cafeterias, Inc.
adopted January 14, 1997 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(m) to the Company's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 1997, and incorporated herein by reference).*
Amendment to Nonemployee Director Deferred Compensation Plan of Luby's Cafeterias, Inc.
adopted March 19, 1998 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(o) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended February 28, 1998, and incorporated herein by reference).*
Amended and Restated Nonemployee Director Stock Option Plan of Luby's, Inc. approved by the
shareholders of Luby's, Inc. on January 14, 2000 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(j) to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 29, 2000, and incorporated herein
by reference).*
Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan dated May 30, 1996 (Ñled as
Exhibit 10(j) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Ñscal year ended August 31,
1996, and incorporated herein by reference).*
Amendment to Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan adopted
January 14, 1997 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(r) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended February 28, 1997, and incorporated herein by reference).*
Amendment to Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan adopted
January 9, 1998 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(u) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended February 28, 1998, and incorporated herein by reference).*
Amendment to Luby's Cafeterias, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan adopted May 21,
1999 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(q) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended May 31, 1999, and incorporated herein by reference.)*
Severance Agreement between Luby's, Inc. and Barry J.C. Parker dated December 19, 2000 (Ñled
as Exhibit 10(r) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
November 30, 2000, and incorporated herein by reference.)*
Luby's Incentive Stock Plan adopted October 16, 1998 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(cc) to the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Ñscal year ended August 31, 1998, and incorporated herein by
reference).*
Form of Change in Control Agreement entered into between Luby's, Inc. and each of its Senior
Vice Presidents as of January 8, 1999 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(aa) to the Company's Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 1999, and incorporated herein by reference).*
Luby's, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan eÅective June 1, 1999 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(cc) to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 1999, and incorporated
herein by reference).*
Registration Rights Agreement dated March 9, 2001, by and among Luby's, Inc., Christopher J.
Pappas, and Harris J. Pappas (Ñled as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K
dated March 9, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference).
Purchase Agreement dated March 9, 2001, by and among Luby's, Inc. Harris J. Pappas, and
Christopher J. Pappas (Ñled as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
March 9, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference).
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Employment Agreement dated March 9, 2001, between Luby's, Inc. and Christopher J. Pappas
(Ñled as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 9, 2001, and
incorporated herein by reference).*
Employment Agreement dated March 9, 2001, between Luby's, Inc. and Harris J. Pappas (Ñled as
Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 9, 2001, and
incorporated herein by reference).*
Luby's, Inc. Incentive Bonus Plan for Fiscal 2001 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(z) to the Company's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the Ñscal year ended August 31, 2000, and incorporated herein by
reference).*
Luby's, Inc. Stock Option granted to Christopher J. Pappas on March 9, 2001 (Ñled as
Exhibit 10(w) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31,
2001, and incorporated herein by reference).*
Luby's, Inc. Stock Option granted to Harris J. Pappas on March 9, 2001 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(x) to
the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2001, and
incorporated herein by reference).*
AÇliate Services Agreement dated August 31, 2001, by and among Luby's, Inc., Christopher J.
Pappas, Harris J. Pappas, Pappas Restaurants, L.P., and Pappas Restaurants, Inc. (Ñled as Exhibit
10(y) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Ñscal year ended August 31, 2001,
reÑled as Exhibit 10(y) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
February 13, 2002, to include signature reference and an exhibit that were inadvertently omitted,
and incorporated herein by reference).
Ground Lease for a cafeteria site dated March 25, 1994, by and between Luby's Cafeterias, Inc.
and PHCG Investments, as amended by Lease Amendment dated July 6, 1994 (Ñled as
Exhibit 10(z) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Ñscal year ended August 31,
2001, and incorporated herein by reference).
Lease Agreement for dated June 1, 2001, by and between Luby's, Inc. and Pappas Restaurants,
Inc. (Ñled as Exhibit 10(aa) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Ñscal year
ended August 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference).
Final Severance Agreement and Release between Luby's, Inc. and Alan M. Davis dated July 20,
2001 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(bb) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Ñscal year
ended August 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference). While in search for new executive
management, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Davis in January
2001. The value of that one-year contract was a year's salary upon termination. After new
management was secured, the Company Ñnalized the exhibited agreement that provides for the
payment of monthly consulting fees to Mr. Davis until July 2002, but releases the Company from
all prior employment commitments.*
Consultant Agreement between Luby's Restaurants Limited Partnership and Alan M. Davis dated
July 20, 2001 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(cc) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
Ñscal year ended August 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference).*
Luby's, Inc. Amended and Restated Nonemployee Director Phantom Stock Plan eÅective
September 28, 2001 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(dd) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended February 13, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference).*
Final Severance Agreement and Release between Luby's, Inc. and S. Darrell Wood eÅective
July 28, 2002.*
Consultant Agreement dated August 30, 2002, between Luby's Restaurants Limited Partnership
and S. Darrell Wood.*
Form of IndemniÑcation Agreement entered into between Luby's, Inc. and each member of its
Board of Directors initially dated July 23, 2002.
Amended and Restated AÇliate Services Agreement dated July 23, 2002, by and among Luby's,
Inc., Pappas Restaurants, L.P., and Pappas Restaurants, Inc.
Master Sales Agreement dated July 23, 2002, by and among Luby's, Inc., Pappas Restaurants,
L.P., and Pappas Restaurants, Inc. and Procedure adopted by the Finance and Audit Committee of
the Board of Directors on July 23, 2002, pursuant to Section 2.3 of the Master Sales Agreement.
Statement re computation of per share earnings.
Subsidiaries of Luby's, Inc. (Ñled as Exhibit 21 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the Ñscal year ended August 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference).

99(a)

99(b)

Corporate Governance Guidelines of Luby's, Inc., as amended October 25, 2001 (Ñled as
Exhibit 99(a) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
February 13, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference).
Consent of Ernst & Young LLP.

*Denotes management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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